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Tanla ata glance

High Growth, Best-in-Class margins and Free cash flow profile in 6 years from FY2017-22

IR @ = alnll n
6x 12x 13x 1,369 1,216 976
Revenues EBITDA PAT Gross Margin EBITDA % PAT %
% Basis points Basis points Basis points
increase increase increase
Accelerated Innovation
wisely TRUBLOQ
3 patents Exclusive multiyear Exclusive Exclusive World's first block
) ) ) ) Trusted by over
awarded partnership partnership partnership chain enabled 50K enterorises
with Vi with Truecaller  with Kore.ai CPaaS stack P

Enterprise segment market leader

Choice of leaders across industry

Enterprise segment market leader

9/10 8/10 7/10 30% 192
Banking; Financial Healthcare, FMCG & Market share No of customer with
E-commerce services &IT Social Media inIndia Revenue >1Cr
T (s
+1Billion 42%
Users Market share'
Awards and Recoghnition
é:i WORLD M%
¥ | HRD 2
Q CONGRESS Gartner dunQbradstreet AWARDS

Global HR Excellence

Recognizedinthe 2021 Gartner

Award 2022 CPaaS Competitive Landscape

Listed in Local & Global Indices
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MSCI @ Nshgllcapzso Mln:ﬁa\[/)igital

Featuredin Next top

Woninthe Enterprise

NNiftySOO

100 companiesin India Communication category

S&PE3SE

SENSEX
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MidSmallcap400

NNiﬁy
— Alpha50

1. Thisindicative data on market size has been arrived at basis our internal analysis. Thisis our assessment and merely indicative in nature and should not be relied upon.
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2021-22 Ataglance

Revenue
Growth
37%

PAT
Growth
51%

17% Margin

Free
Cash Flow
424 Cr

79% of PAT

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa

GGross

profit growth

97%

28% Margin

Earnings
Per Share
39.77

57% Growth

Cash
R922Cr

EBITDA
Growth
62%

22% Margin

Operating
Cash Flow
X486 Cr

90% of PAT

Cash Returned
to Shareholders
R96Cr



Welcome to Tanla

Tanla transforms the way the world
collaborates and communicates through
innovative CPaaS solutions. Founded in
1999, it was the first company to develop
and deploy A2P SMSC in India. Today, as
one of the world's largest CPaaS players, it
processes more than 800 billion interactions
annually and about 63% of India's A2P

SMS traffic is processed through Trublog,
making it the world'’s largest Blockchain
use case. Wisely, our patented enterprise
grade platform offers private, secure, and
trusted experiences for enterprises and
mobile carriers. Tanlais headquartered in
Hyderabad. Tanlais listed on two national
exchanges, the NSE and BSE, (NSE: TANLA,;
BSE: 532790) and included in prestigious
indices such as the Nifty 500 and BSE 500,
Nifty Digital Index, FTSE Russell and MSCI.

Amar Reddy, Senior Dirgctor of Engineering
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About this Report

Our Annual report combines financial

and business performance. It shows how we are
developing asa Company and how we create
value for shareholders with what we do.

Ataglance

— Financialreportinginaccordance with
The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

— Statutory audit by MSKA and Associates

Content and Structure

Tanla Annual Reportis published eachyearin english
covering the major financial, business and products
related information necessary to comprehensively
evaluate our performance. We select the report’s
topics based on the following principles: materiality,
completeness and stakeholderinclusion.

The information on the financial positionand
performance of Tanlacomply with requirements, of
The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Internal
controlmechanisms ensure reliability of the information
presentedinthisreport. The Board of Directorsis of the
opinion thatinternal financial controls were adeqguate
and effective.

For more information on our control and risk management system, see
page 45 onward

Data

Allinformation and bases for calculationin thisreportis
as per standards for financial reporting. Due to rounding,
individual figures may not add up exactly to the total
shown and percentages may not correspond exactly

to figures shown. The reporting periodis April 2021to
March 2022. Relevant informationisincluded up to
editorial deadline of August 04, 2022.

Tanla Group's scope of consolidation forits financial
reporting comprises of Tanla Platforms Limited and all of

its fully consolidated subsidiaries.

The section "Employees” refers to employeesactiveina
company within the Tanla Group as on March 31, 2022.

For more information on companies accounted forin the Consolidated
Financial Statements, see the Notes from page 191onward

Tanla Annual Report2021-22

Statutory audit

MSKA and Associates has audited Tanla Group
Consolidated Financial statements and hasissued an
ungualified report.

Theindependent Auditor's Report can be found on Page 184 onward

Forward-looking statements

Thisreport might contain statements that are forward
lookingin nature. All statements other than statements
of historical fact could be deemed as forward-looking
in nature. Such statements are inherently subject
torisks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be
predicted or guantified. By receiving this report, you
acknowledge that you will be solely responsible for your
own assessment of the market and our market position
and that you will conduct your own analysis and be solely
responsible for forming your own view of the potential
future performance of our business.
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Dear Shareholders,

Tanla hasyetanother momentous year filled with
milestones across all dimensions. What is most satisfying
forme personally is that we have had an unwavering
focus ondigitalinteractions and have built an institution
with the core purpose of ‘empowering consumers and
enabling companies’. Further, we have integrated our
purpose and strategy with our ESG objectives asyou
will see in the strategy section. | believe in maintaining
best-in-class governance and have continuously
improved the quality of disclosures and internal
processes to build a best-in-class well governed
organization. lam humbled that you have invested your
time toread our Annual Reportand | will set the context
inmy letter covering the key themes of the report.

We have momentum: Overthe last 2 years, the
pandemic has changed the world of digital interactions.
The number of digital users have accelerated over the
pandemic resulting in doubling of the number of people
transacting digitally from ~ 100 million to over 200 million
unique users. Thisdoubling of transactors along with
increased engagement has driven a manifold increase of
digitalinteractions and we expect thisto be an evergreen
trend. Enterprises are focused on digitalization more
thanever and it gives me great satisfactionto see Tanla
atthe center of this transformation. Whetheritis the role
we playindriving covid vaccinations or enabling users to
transactina secure manner by providing OTPs, we are
very grateful for the opportunity to serve over a billion
end consumers on behalf of our enterprises and we

are focused on building trustin the entire ecosystem.

Our dualfocus onenabling enterprises while
empowering consumers has resonated strong with our
customers andreflectsin our financial performance.
Ourrevenues crossed the 3,000 crore milestone.
Gross Margin expanded 365 basis pointsin FY22, driven
by our platform business. We generated free cash flows
of over 400 crore and we have a strong zero-debt
balance sheetwith cash balance of over R900 crore.
We compare ourselveswith global leadersin this space
(Twillio, Sinch, Ring Central) across multiple metrics.
Our revenue growth was 37% (best-in-class peer was
42%), our Gross margins was 28% (best-in-class peer
was 72%), EBITDA margins was 22% (next comparable
peer was 5%) and EBITDA to GM Conversionwas 77%
(next comparable peerwas 21%). We are best-in-class
across most metrics, only lagging in Gross Margins, and
thatislargely due to the higher platform contribution
foracouple of our competitors. We are scaling up our
platforms business and we will bridge the gap over time.
I am proud of the significant shareholder value we have
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created for ourinvestors on the back of our consistent
performance, many of whom are small retail investors.
We are equally proud of having contributed close to
2800 croretothe exchequerinterms of directand
indirect tax payments in the year.

We are sharpening our focus to build 2 synergistic
business - Platforms and Enterprises.

We have achieved market leadership in both
Platforms and Enterprises and we want to
accelerate each of those journeys.

Letme dwellinto our platform business first and
highlight distinct characteristics of the same. Our
platform business grew 74% YoY and operates at gross
margin of over 90%. We are seeing momentum and
scaling this business on the back of our Wisely platform.
Over the last 12 months, we have systematically built

the comprehensive Wisely Platform of Platforms that
touches every aspect of the entire digital interactions
value chain. We drive improved business outcomes
with solutions built on our Wisely platform, addressing
multiple senior stakeholders/buyers with a value-based
pricing model. This increases customer stickiness
andincreases the lifetime value of our customers. For
instance, the Vipartnership on Wisely will fundamentally
improve the customer experience and compliance on
international messaging. With this approach, we are
able toidentify green field opportunities (e.g., Truecaller
exclusive partnership on business messaging and
Kore.aion conversational solutions) and build unique
solutions that lead to higher gross margin profile over
time. Our dedicated innovation team will be housed
inatruly unigue customer experience and innovation
centerin Hyderabad later this year. On the enterprise
business, Karix continues to be an industry leader
catering to the best and biggest brands in the country
including Government of India. In every vertical, seven
to nine of the top ten companies are our customers and
within our top customers we have increased our product
penetration to 19 compared to 1.6 a year back. In addition,
we continue to have arobust customer acquisition
engine where we have added 270 new customers during
theyear.

Uncompromising financial discipline - Tanla is unique
inthe CPaaS spacein many ways. We grow like a startup,
we have the balance sheetand cash flows of a market
leader. We believe in driving profitable business —we

are the most profitable pure play CPaaS company in

the world. We believe in creating business models that
generate cash and not raise capital to sustain low margin



business models. We believe in building and partnering
rather than acquisitions. We are the only company
which hasreturned cash to shareholders while rest of
the industry have beenraising capital. In fact,am happy
to share that we have justannounced a dividend policy
to make payouts of 30% of our consolidated PAT every
year from FY23 -this reflects our confidence indriving
profitable cash generating business. At our very core,
financial discipline and responsible capital allocation are
ingrainedin Tanla.

We have a very exciting opportunity ahead of usand we
are well placed to address allthe key trends as digital
interactions become more ubiquitous - beit the need for
increased data privacy, need to integrate CDP solutions
with CPaas, transition to new channels oraddress newer
use cases. lexpect FY23 to be the year of Wisely.

We have now a fully built and tested platform thatis ready
to scale and address the entire value chain.

Insummary, our strategy isworking. We are executing
well, and our employees are charged up aswe scale to
our nextphase of growth. On behalf of my outstanding
team, let me thank all our shareholders foryour
tremendous support to Tanla and I look forward to your
continued support.

Withrespectand appreciation,

Uday Reddy



Uday Kumar Reddy m Sanjay Baweja

Founder Chairmanand CEO Independent Director and Chairman of
Member Audit Committee
Audit, CSR/ESG Committee Member

Audit, Risk Management Committee

o

Rohit Bhasin Sanjay Kapoor

Independent Director and Chairman of Non-Executive Directorand Chairman
Nomination &Remuneration Committee of Stakeholder relationship Committee
Member Member

Nomination & Remuneration, Audit, CSR/ Stakeholder Relationship Committee
ESG Committee

Dr.A.G.Ravindranath Reddy m Deepak Satyaprakash Goyal
Non- Executive Director & Executive Director

Chairman of Risk ManagementCommittee Member

Member Risk Management Committee

Risk Managment, Stakeholder
relationship, CSR/ESG Committee
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Amrita Gangotra m
Independent Director

Member

Nomination &Remuneration, Stakeholder
relationship, Risk Management
Committee

| v
RahulKhanna

Independent Director and Chairman
of CSR/ESG Committee

Member

CSR/ESG, Audit, Nomination &

Remuneration, Stakeholder Relationship
Committee
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Tanla on the capital market

Tanla has been creating significant value for its shareholders through best-in-class financial performance, disciplined capital
allocation and highest standards of ESG. During the year, we delivered very strong financial performance while returning

cashtoshareholders.

Ataglance

Tanlais listed on two national exchanges, NSE and
BSE andisincludedin India and Globalindices
such as the Nifty 500, BSE 500, Nifty Digital
Index, Nifty Alpha 50, FTSE Russell & MSCI

Tanla share price increases by 78% in FY22.

We returned < 96 crore to shareholders

Share performance

Tanla share closed at3 1,526 ason March 31,
2022, anincrease of 78% compared with previous
year closing price of R 814. We outperformed

the Indices that we were part of.

Share performance of Tanla compared with select Indices

e Tanla Platforms Nifty Mid Small Cap 400 s BSE/NSE 500
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Apr-2021 May-2021  Jun-2021  Jul-2021  Aug-2021 Sep-2021 Oct-2021

Performance of Tanla shares compared
with select Indices

2020-2021
Nifty 500 i 82%
BSE500 [l 83%

Nifty Mid Small Cap 400 108%

Tanla Platforms [N 1515%
2021-2022

Nifty 500 Il 19%
BSEs00 M 19%

Nifty Mid Small Cap 400 25%
Tanla Platforms | INEGEG 759
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Nov-2021 Dec-2021 Jan-2022  Feb-2022 Mar-2022

Weightage of Tanla shares in select Indices
as on March 31,2022

Indices March 312021 March 312022
Nifty Mid Small 0.31% 0.42%
Cap400

BSE 500 0.07% 0.09%
Nifty 500 0.07% 0.09%



Tanla Platforms’ stock price outperformed Proposed dividend of ¥ 2 per share
indicesinwhichitis partof - Nifty Mid Small Cap

400 returned 25%, Nifty 500 19% and BSE 500 The Board of Directors have recommended a final
19% over the same period, respectively. dividend of R 2 per equity share (200% of face value)
forthe year FY22, subject to shareholders approval
The asset of investor who invested 1,00,000 inthe Annual General Meeting which would result
inthe Tanla shares on April 01, 2020, would be in cash outflow of ¥ 27 Crore to its shareholders.

worth X 29,18,793 by end of March 31,2022.

We have consistent track record of dividend
payouts. Based on the year-end share price as on
March 31,2022, it offers a dividend yield of 0.13%.

Dividend per share

R pershare 2.0 20
s Bmm am R

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

1. Proposed for FY22. Face value of equity shareis 3 1per share
2.For FY21, Tanla has paid interim dividend of R 1 per share in July 2020 and a final dividend of R 1per share in Oct 2021.

Shareholder ownership Employees becoming shareholders

As on March 31,2022, Company has about 130,040 We run a Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) program for
shareholders as compared to 61,586 shareholders employees. During the year 4,67,500 RSU were granted
asonMarch 31,2021. Promoters and employees under this scheme.

hold 49.3% of the total equity. Institutional investors

(Flland DII) shareholding structure has increased Completion of buyback of shares
from17.6% t018.3% over the past twelve months. for second consecutive year

The board of Directors approved buyback of equity
Shareholder structure shares, for an aggregate amount not exceeding

B Promoters [l Retail [ FII [ Employees DIl

stock exchange mechanisminaccordance with the
applicable regulationsin July 2021.

The buyback program was completedin September

represents 99.98% of the maximum buyback size.

Information on Tanla Stock

65 crore, and at a price not exceeding 1,260 per equity
share, payablein cash, from the open market through

2021and bought back 7,05,677 equity shares at a volume
weighted average price of ¥920.88 per equity share. It
deployed R 6498 crore excluding transaction cost which

National Stock Exchange of India TANLA
Limited (NSE)

BSE Ltd (BSE) 532790
ISIN INE483C01032

International ticker symbols

Bloomberg (NSE) TANLA:IN

Reuters (NSE) TNSL.NS
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Key share data

FY21 FY22

Year -end price

Year high

Year low

Year average

Number of shares on March 31
Market Capitalization as on March 31
Earnings pershare

Dividend per share

Dividend yield per share (*)

Price earnings ratio (P/E ratio) (*)

*Based on year-end share price

Close Dialog with the capital market

At aglance

— Conducted avirtual Analyst & Investor day
in June 2021 with 2000+ participants

— Participatedin 15+ virtual conferences
— Conductedaroadshowin London
— Meet75+investors

— Conducted four earnings call

We aim to create long-term value for shareholders
throughregular, consistent and transparent
communication with capital markets.

We conducted a Virtual Analyst &Investor day in June
2021, which was attended by Founder Chairman & CEO,
along with management team and it provided insights on
Company performance, its strategy and ESG initiatives

In light of the pandemic, we almost exclusively used
virtual formats such asvideo or conference calls for
dialog during the year. We engage with institutional
investors and analystin numerous one-on-one meetings
and participationin conference and road shows.

Tanla Annual Report2021-22

2 814 1,526

2 1,001 2,096

2 68 735

2 384 1198
Million 136.03 135.47

BillionX m 207

8 25.27 39.77

2 2 2

% 0.25 013

% 3212 38.37

Our Board constitutes of executive, non-executive
and independent directors. Majority of the board
committees are chaired by independent directors
with strong focus on corporate governance. Internal
auditors- M/s Deloitte Touche Tohmastu India LLP
reportindependently to Audit committee. MSKA &
Associates are our statutory auditors since FY20 and
have issued an unqualified audit report. M/s BDO India
LLP hasbeenappointedas GST auditors since FY20.
Secretarial compliance review is undertaken for the
group by BSR &Associates since FY20. We also have
third parties such as KPMG Assurance and Consulting
services LLP since FY19 which independently

reviews our process and acts as additional
management layer to enhance internal controls.

As part of corporate governance, we enhanced
our reporting by introducing Shareholder Report
on aquarterly basis with additional disclosures
on quarterly basis such as revenues and gross
margin generated from Platform and Enterprise
business, cashflow, balance sheet, statement of
equity etc,. It also providesinsights on business
and quarterly performance along with amessage
to Shareholders from Founder Chairman & CEO.

Contact Investor Relation team at investorhelp@tanla.com
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Management's
Report
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Key Performance Indicators

Revenue

FY20 R1924Cr

Fy21 X2,341Cr

FY22 %3,206Cr

Gross Profit

FY20 *391Cr
Fy21 %578Cr

FY22 %908Cr

EBITDA

FY20 X185Cr
Fy21 R434Cr

FY22 X700Cr

Profit after tax

FY20 (R211Cr)

FY21 %356Cr

FY22 X539Cr
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EPS

FY20 s (R14.77)
FY21 %25.27

FY22 X39.77

Cash

FY20 R201Cr
Fy21 X584Cr

FY22 %922Cr

Dividend

FY20 —
FY21 200%
FY22 *200%

*Subject to shareholders approvalin AGM

No. of customers contributing revenue
greater than R 1crore annually

FY20 129
Fy21 149

FY22 192



Stakeholder management

Our stakeholdersinclude customers, investors, partners, regulators, employees and society. We continuously engage with
our stakeholders to understand what matters to them and what they expect of us, and which measures we need to pursuein
order to establish and maintain trust, build partnerships, and increase societal acceptance for and the sustainability of our
business activities.

Stakeholder expectations of Tanla

Customers Partners

E@% — Domain understanding and sz)); — Fairandreliable business relationships

seamless deployments . -
PioY — Create greenfield opportunities

— Createimpactand deliver value

— | dROI
through bespoke solutions mprove
— Endtoendcompliance
500 Employees Investors
%@} — Attractive and fairemployer — Growth backed by a sustainable
pbusiness model

— Build competency

— Highest levels of corporate governance
— Attractive compensation benefits g P J

— Transparency and open communication

— Attractive dividendyield
Regulators @ ESG
— Compliance % ()) — Support forlocal communities
— Trust — Skilldevelopment foryouth
— Thought leadership — Carbonnetural by 2025

Tanla Annual Report2021-22



How We Create Value

Inputs
= 9 I 5 il
Financial Innovation Partnerships ESG Employees
Prudent capital Develop and Partner within E- Environmental Launch of Tanla
allocation to commercialize the ecosystemto advocacy Academy- Building
build high growth, productstoaddress create green field S-Skill Development key competencies
profitable, cash entire ecosystem opportunities foryouth through L&D
generating business G- Governance and training
300+ Long standing
1,354 crore ) partnerships with Baseline study for 638 Employees
. R&D & Innovation : .
Capitalemployed enterprisesand Carbon Footprint
employees . :
mobile carriers
Exclusive
X922 crore ~XIb2crore partnership 1OQ+ students 3127 Crore
Cash Capexspends on Wilsey- Trained through
: Employee cost
Truecaller\Vi, skill development
Kore.ai
Outcomes
= 9 QN 5 Gl
| dcustome
37% Processed 300bn+ m:;s‘fien:;ean el ESG ~700
Revenue growth transactions complaince on Target of carbon Training hours
Trublog neutral by 2025.

X424 Crore
Free Cash flow
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90+% Gross
Margins from
Platforms

internation messaging

New market
opportunities

Truecaller business

messaging

83 students
Placed for
employment
7
New quartely
disclosuers

86%
Employee
engagementscore



Our Strategy

Tanla hashad aremarkable last few years. We are
serving marguee customers across segments with
a42% market share in India, 6X revenue growth from
FY17-22 with a high customer retentionrate. This
yearisaninflection point for Tanlaand hence we are
stepping up our game with arenewed purpose of
empowering consumers and enabling companies.

We will continue to lead our purpose with a two-
pronged strategy of becoming a ‘platform’company
and deepening ‘customer relationships’ across the
enterprise business. The platform business will help
us stay true to our strategy of ‘build/partner’' over buy.

Parallely, we will continue to strengthen our existing
relationships by focusing on customer success.

Our focusisonthree key drivers of growth —organic,
new product and new customers. These will be enabled
through the ‘Tanla way of working’ wherein we apportion
required resources behind key levers and capitalize on
the newly institutionalized 'garage’ operating model.

Our strategy will continue to deliver robust
financial performance and high quality
business outcomes, asit has always done.

Global trends shaping digital interactions

We have seen significant tailwinds across key stakeholders globally that are shaping the future of digital interactions

Customers

@@ — Explosionin digital interactions with
2X growthintransacting users and
3X growth of digital transactions
inthelast2.5yearsinIndia

— Usersare expectingrich, real time
and immersive interactions across
channels with enhanced privacy

— Personalization with E2E encryptionis
becoming key to capture user attention
inasecure manner, with enterprises
having no access to message content

Enterprises

||| — Transition to newer channels and
growth of cross channel marketing
automationis creating need for

- E2E solutions (vs. point products)

- Asingle platform with one
APl to engage with users

— Businesses have witnessed a 2X
growth in digital quotient, a metric
whichindicates adoption of advanced
techlike SaaS and Cloud

— Cloud-based models with no capex
and pay-as-you-go models are gaining
traction, leading to expansion of CPaaS
players to offer Customer Data Platforms
(CDP) leveraging blockchain &Al/ML for
marketing and customer service use case

Tanla Annual Report2021-22

Partners
sz)} — Proliferation of channels competing

for attentionis creating aneed
foromnichannel presence

— Increasing focus on solutions (e.g.,
conversational commerce with chatbots
onwebsite, mobile apps, WhatsApp;
WebRTCdriven communications post
Covid, increased richness and scope
of communication with development
of RCS&OTT platforms, etc)

Regulators

— Data privacy and security is
pbecoming paramount globally

— Consent, transparency, protection
and user control are getting tighter



Our purpose in action

Empowering 1 bn+ Consumers with

Gold standard
experience to
consumers with on-time
omnichannel digital
interaction

Full control of
communication by
seeking and honouring
their consent and
preference

Complete data @

privacy with end-to-end
cryptographic
encryption

T=EC?

Improved business

outcomes - better OTP
consummations, higher
Rol of spends

Enabling 1,300+ Companies with

Relevance to their @

customers through
Al/ML, recommendation
engine, insights

Operational
excellence (one-click

reconciliation) and

regulatory compliance
(block-chain based
immutable trail)
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Our 2-pronged strategy

We have a 2-pronged strategy that revolves around 2 core businesses - platform and enterprise. We are gradually
becoming a platform company while deepening our long standing relationships with existing enterprise customers.

Our platform business operates with a
gross margin of 90%+ and witnesses
great customer stickiness compared to

) ) Becoming a
our enterprise business. We are
) . - platform
innovating across each part of the digital
company

interactions value chain and have gained
significant momentum across each of
the platform solutions

Our

strategy

Like always, we will continue to

Deepening obsess about customer success.
customer ~50% of our top 50 customers
relationships have been with us for more than

across the 7 years. We witnessed 37%
enterprise organic growth in FY22 which is a
business testament to our deep customer

relationships

1. Becoming a platform company

We have been the industry leaderin the space of
digitalinteractions for the past few years. We have
achieved thiswith a strong focus on creatinglarge
innovative platforms. By bringing together all
platformsinto one, we have launched Wisely - the
platform of platforms for all digital interactions.

Wisely was a natural step for us to create synergistic
value for our customers and exploit the full

potential of our portfolio. Platform business allows
us to build/ partner for new products &offer
solutions. With over 2 decades of experience inthe
communication space, we are deeply embedded
acrossthe key blocks of the value chain, i.e., engage,
compliance, communicate and network.
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Our platform business has already gained significant
momentum. We have deployed Wisely platform at
Viand have launched "Wisely Insights” for several
global tech majors. We have kicked off our exclusive
partnership with Kore.ai, a Gartner Magic Quadrant
leaderin conversational Al space and Truecaller.

This platform approach will help us bolster the quality
of outcomes through higher revenue predictability,
lower customer churn and healthier gross margin.
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We are deeply embedded across 4 big blocks of the digital interaction value chain namely
Engage, Compliance, Communicate and Network ...

Enter-
prises

Engage :@1

across customer lifecycle

(1) Acquire

@ Cross-sell/Up-sell

@ Retain

> Acquire:

Al enabled customer
insights for better
targeting and reach

Cross-sell/ (2020)
Up-sell:

2 GAMOOGA

Big data and Al/ML
capabilities:

Personalization at scale

Retain:
Predictive Al &
recommendation
engine!

(2022)

Targeted propositions
for customer stickiness/
loyalty

Source: Tanla estimates

Compliance

Adherence to local
and global laws for
all communications
e.g., TCCCPR, GDPR

TRUBLOQ (2019)

World's largest
blockchain platform
to prevent fraud
and SPAM

Omnichannel
interactions across
multiple channels
and partners

(2019)

4 xarix
1,300+
enterprise reach

) Year of acquisition/launch

End-to-end
encrypted network
scalable on demand
with highly reliable
delivery

Deep
network
integration

Integrated Al based
firewall, deeply
embedded network
elements

6 SMSC
deployments with
20k TPS capacity

... that address the requirements of all key buying functions across organizations

gl
08

Marketing
(Engage)

Operations
(Communicate)
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Key buying functions

s

(2018) > Users

o0o

Eer

xx — Relevant offerings

Regulatory and
compliance

(Compliance)

Technology

()

Network)

(Communicate,



Wisely - A platform of platforms for digital interactions

lllustrative solutions; not exhaustive m— Byj|g =— Dartner
Solutions  OTP performance Collection Digital sales Next product Enabl
improvement acceleration agent to buy nablers
Dynamic &
Engage Compliance Communicate S differential
pricing
Acquire Crosssell Compliance Omnichannel
Marketplace é)@ Role-based
Albased kore(D TRUBLOQ truecaller access
Industry insights for ]
and better customer ~ Conversational @ Reports
regulatory targeting Al
compliance @ AIOPS
Network Global Express Cloud Aledge ILDSMS SMSC Firewall
scalable  connects hub (&> Workflows
network

E%f; APIs
Platform E2E Blockchain As-a-service  Smart Data Al/ML
encryption model routing  fabric capabilities %Tf} Plug-ins

Wisely has started gaining traction across businesses and is making progress
across key modules

Platform business delivered robust financial performance in FY22 ...

S5 ]

X252 Cr X236 Cr

Revenues Gross margin

...and made significant momentum across key modules on Wisely

"! O @ truecaller

Exclusive multi- Al/ML based model Insights to global and Launched exclusively
year partnership launched for BFSland local enterprises; telcos; on Wisely platform;

digital native use cases regulators with role- Robust product
Al/ML based firewall based accesslaunched roadmap

to prevent leakages
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Overall, our platform business will have a positive impact on the
quality of our business outcomes

Platform business’ characteristics... @ ...drive better quality of outcomes
Truly differentiated proposition built on Q G,r?enfie'd opportqnities across
solutions addressing identified industry needs digitalinteractions lifecycle (engage,

compliance, communicate, network)

Multiple buying centers: C-suite Higher revenue predictability
engagementincluding marketing, product, @ due tolonger deal duration
technology IT, risk and compliance
@ Value based pricing linked to successful Lower customer churn given
“ delivery of committed outcomes D\/jg deeply embedded solutions
N1 solution selling capability given larger 80 Healthier gross margin profile based on
v \y dealsize and extended commitment Dy premium pricingand IP led business

2. Deepening customer relationships

We have We serve Our product penetration

Strengthened 7-9 out of top 10 hasincreased from
ourlong standing anaverage of 1.6 to

. . customers
alarge customer base. our 120 customers
use 3+ services

Robust growth across customer segments
Count of customers Fv21 [l FY22

192
149
139

105

36
32
H . =
I o —

>3I1Cr-<3210Cr >3I10Cr-<X50Cr >I50Cr Allthree segments
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Increased wallet share across customer segments

Revenue growth across segments, inX Crore
3,104

2,229

1,791

1,188

462 702 -
339

>3 1Cr-<210Cr >3 10Cr-<560Cr >IB0Cr Allthree segments

Deep relationships driving growth over long periods
Revenue by customer cohort

CAGR
Wryi7 [FY8 Fy19  BFy20 MFY21

22%

— 142%
99%
— 118%
149%

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

1.Representsrevenue from our active customers grouped by cohorts based on the year when each customer account cohort originated.

2.Cohorts of FY17alsoincludes customers acquired during prior periods
3. Customer data complied also includes customers of Karixand Gamooga for pre acquisition period
4.CAGRbetween onyear of cohort origination and FY22

FY21 FY22

Contribution of customers 51 % 56%

with revenue >I50 crore

B ey 1,478 1,940
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Doing it the ‘Tanla way’

We are focusing on 3 key engines of growth : organic, new products and new customers...

i

Organic growth

— Continue the momentum in
growth (6X revenue
growth in FY17-22)

— Increase wallet share of
wallet of existing
customers

if)
New products

— Build a healthy pipeline of
new products

— Increase lifetime value of
existing customers

New customers

— Increase the Indian
presence by serving SMEs
and digital Natives

3 engines of growth

... which will be driven through our core DNA

)

Lead with domain expertise and
tech competence (e.g.,
blockchain, Al/ML)

OD ﬂo
Collaborate to build ecosystems

including enterprise, telco and
regulators

=

o O
[

Service at scale to marquee
customers and partners across
industries

©

Focus on financial discipline and
prudence (e.g., debt free,
generating high free cash flows)
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Wealth creation and contribution to
society (e.g., 29x Rol to shareholders

in last 2 years, 784 Cr. contribution to
exchequerin FY22)

A
Sl
Drive growth organically - no
acquisition in past 3-4 years

&

Outcome based revenue share
model across partnerships (e.g.,
Truecaller, Kore)
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We are further strengthening our operating model through two key tenets: right capital allocation and
garage way of working. These are underscored by our people centric approach and renewed values
which areinline with our dual purpose of empowering consumers and enabling companies

Capital Garage way of

allocation working

Capital allocation

We have committed to invest required resources and allocate capital across 4 key areas to drive holistic outcomes

Innovation hub Customer success

&

Innovation center Consultative customer Refresh brand and digital Deep tech competency
success and solution presence
team

Blockchain platform Upgrade talent profile

Shape industry

Custom solution perspective
Conversational Al clpvelopiment . Global talent for
platform ) Thought leadership international expansion
Customer trials, PoCs
Awareness in new
Garage way of working Experience center geographies
Attractive financial outcomes Attractive business outcomes
... high revenue growth ... high quality of revenue
... high gross margin profile ... Stickiness of customers
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Garage way of working Our garage way of working will resultin superior
products, faster time to market and reduced risks of

Our newly institutionalized 'garage way of working’ has failure.

broughtinnovation at the center of our operations. Itis

characterized by trust and collaboration acrossroles, Our Tanla way of working has always delivered
focus onbusiness needsinstead of departmental robust financial performance and continues to do
objectives and ahigh value is placed onlearning through s0.We have a strong focus on profitability and cash

experimentation. flows. Thisis evident in our strong balance sheet

osition with 1,354 crore in equity and reserves,
Garage, whichisalso known as a factory of innovation, P qurty

) ) 3922 crore of cash and cash equivalent build up
has promoted our leaders to work with their squads to ) ) ) .,
create a culture of sharing and deliver new capabilities and no debt. We firmly believe that the "Tanla way
quickly. We are building self-directed and agile will continue to pave the way for us to deliver on our
teams with strong ownership, hence requiring limited strategy and record strong profitable growth.
supervision. We are also fostering a culture of customer
obsession which keeps voice of customer at the center
of all our decisions.

Garage Team in action

A
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Our strategy has ESG at its centre

Strategy focus Environment

Social

Governance

Becoming a platform
company

Our new office building, the
centre-house for all new
productideasistargeted
towards achieving LEED
gold certification

Deepening customer
Relationships

We believe in collaborating
with environmentally
conscious partners to offer
a best-in-class experience
to ourcustomers

We believe inresource
efficiency, growthandare
onan upward trajectory
toachieve net carbon
neutrality by 2025

Strong balance sheet
and profitable growth
using the Tanla way

'TargetforFY23for CTO Org

B8 tanla

TANLA FOUNDATION

(8

buncement Program' 7

5
]

Implementation Pariner

€
Ddambhav
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We are on the path to upskill
90%+ of our platform
workforce'and build 2
centres of competence
(Al/ML and blockchain)

We are here to empower the
end consumer -1Bn+users
touched by our services

with animproved consumer
experience for million+mobile
subscribers across India

We are using our resources
to Educate (via our PILLARS
initiative) and Employ
(skilldevelopmentand
placement for building
aninclusive society)

Trubloq -World's largest
blockchain platform developed
to prevent fraud &spamis
trusted by 50k+ enterprises

We hold our suppliers and
vendorsto the highest

ESG standard through our
Supplier Code of Conduct

Our platform for the industry -
Wisely will strengthen national
security andincrease the
revenue to the exchequer
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Our strategy has ESG at its centre

We are environment
friendly

We empower our
customers, partners,
employees and society

Our platform of
platforms stand for
governance and trust

To empower consumers and enable companies

ESG priority issue

g
Net carbon Climate and
neutrality by 2025 energy

RO 7

—~ |-

| N 15

Competency  Employee  Education &
building upskilling employment

2] & B

Data security Fraud & Compliance
& privacy spam
protection

RRR approach: Continually reduce
consumption, review source' and restore
CO;, balance?

Clear roadmap to plant 25,000 trees?®

LEED gold certification? for our new
office in progress - the center-house for
all new product ideas

Building 2 centers of competence -
Al/ML and blockchain

Upskilled 50% of platform workforce last
1year; on track to target 90% + this year
through the Tanla Academy to build
purposeful products

Skill train and place 10,000 youth;
provide financial support to studentsin
premier educational institutions

Developed Trublog -World's largest
blockchain platform to prevent fraud &
spam with capability to handle ~1 Bn
traffic/day, trusted by 50k+ enterprises

Working with regulators to build
compliance platforms for the industry

- Wisely will strengthen national
security and increase the revenue to
the exchequer

Platform and enterprise business solutions

1. Switchto green energy after source review.

2. Through carbon capture initiatives.

3. MOU signedto plant 25k trees in Government Medical College, Mahbubnagar.
4. The most widely used green building rating system in the world.

Tanla Annual Report2021-22
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Global Economic Outlook

The global economy recovered more quickly in FY22 from the previous year's unprecedented contraction in economic
activity. Policy support by various Government's, rising immunization rates and vaccine-powered strengthening of economic
activity were key contributing factors to global recovery, albeit of a weak base of FY21. Industry trends and business outlook
are covered as part of "Our strategy”.

Consolidated Profit & Loss account

Result of operations
Revenue grew by 37% YoY to X 3,206 crore Yearended
SISV SR ' Inxcroreuniess March 31 (Audited)
— Gross profit grew by 57% YoY at R 908 crore. Gross otherwise stated FY22 | FY21 Change
marginimproved by 365 basis points to 28.3% YoY
— EBITDA grew by 62% YoY at Revenue from operations 3,206 2,34 37%
2700 Crore. EBITDAmarginimproved
by 333 basis points to 21.8% YoY Cost of services (2,298) (1763)  30%

— Profitafter tax grew by 51% YoY at R 539 crore. PAT

- : ; Gross profit 908 578 57%
marginimproved by 162 basis points to 16.8%

— Earnings per share grew by 57% to X 39.77 Gross Margin 28.3% 24.7%

— FreecashflowatX 424 crore Operating expenses

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have

Sales and Marketing (37) (22) 68%
been preparedin accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS") as notified under Section 133 of the General and administrative (171) (122)  40%
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 Total operating expenses (208) (144)  44%
asamended, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
('MCA). Accounting policies have been consistently EBITDA 700 434 62%
appliedto all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard isinitially adopted or a EBITDA margin 21.8% 18.5%
revision to an existing accounting standard requires
achangeinthe accounting policy hithertoin use. Depreciation & Amortisation 41 (40) 3%
Revenue EBIT 659 394 67%
Revenues are derived from our Enterprise and Platform EBIT margin 20.6% 16.8%
business. Revenue from Enterprise are computed based ' )
ontransactions processed through our platforms at the ) o
agreed fixed value per transaction. Finance cost (1) (1) 23%

Otherincome 16 22 (26%)
Platform revenue are computed by way of revenue
share measured as arate applicable to transaction Profit before tax 674 M5 62%
processed on their network fromm mobile carriers and
other suppliers. Revenue is recognized upon provision Tax expenses (135) (59) 130%
of service to customers that reflects the consideration
we expect toreceive in exchange for those service. Profit after tax 539 356  51%
Particulars (InX crore) FY22 FY21 Change PAT margin 16.8% 15.2%
Revenue 3,206 2,341 37% .

Earnings per share 2 39.77 25.27 57%

Revenue grew by 37% YoY to X 3,206 crore. The growth
isdriven by combination of increase in wallet share from
our existing business, price change in International
Long-Distance messaging (ILD), faster growthin
WhatsApp and other non- SMS channels, new customer
additions and creation of new revenue stream Trublog.
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Platform revenue grew by 74% YoY to 252 crore, driven
by Trublog. We processed over 300 Billion transactions
during the year on our blockchain platform Trublog.

Enterprise revenue grew by 34% YoY to 2,954 crore.
The enterprise business growthis on back of increasing
wallet share, new use cases, customer additions,

faster growth in WhatsApp and other non-sms
channels Growthwasled by BFSI, Retail, Social Media

& Government verticals of our existing business.

Customer segmentation

We added 270 new customers during the year, with
revenue contribution of X101 crore. Customer with
annual revenue greater than 1 crore grew by 39% YoY
toX3,104 crore on back of growth in all our customer
segments. Product penetration from top 120 customers
at192in FY22,improved from 1.6 a year back.

Our top twenty customers contributed 1940 crore
inFY22,asagainst 31,478 crore in FY21, up 31%.
Customer concentration from top twenty customers
reduced from 63%in FY21to 61%in FY22.

Fy21 FY22 Growth Growth

Customer segment (in X core) Count | Revenue Count | Revenue in count in revenue
>3I50 crore 12 1,188 17 1,791 42% 51%
>10 crore -<50 crore 32 702 36 851 13% 21%
>R crore-<3X10crore 105 339 139 462 32% 36%
Total 149 2,229 192 3,104 29% 39%
Cost of services

Particulars (In % crore) FY22 FY21  Change Cost of services grew by 30% YoY to R 2,298 crore, led

Cost of services 2,298 1,763 30%

Cost of services mainly consist of service transaction fee
paid to mobile carriers and other suppliers.

by volume growth. Cost of servicesis predominantly
applicable for the enterprise business and very
minimum for platform business. The shift towards
platform business has resultedin a slowerincrease
in cost of services than growthinrevenue.

Gross Profit
Particulars (In R crore) FY22 FY21 Change
Gross Profit 908 578 57%

Revenue less cost of services. Cost of services mainly
consist of service transaction fee paid to mobile carriers
and other suppliers.

Gross profit grew by 57% YoY to X908 crore.
Gross marginimproved by 365 basis
pointsto 28.3% YoY on back of increased
contribution from our platform business.

Platform business gross margin grew by 71% YoY
toX 236 crore. Enterprise business gross margin
grew by 53% YoY to R 672 crore. Improvement

in platform business contribution mix resulted

in expansion of gross margin percentage.

Operating profit-EBITDA

Particulars (In 2 crore) FY22 FY21 Change

Gross Profit 908 578 57%
Sales & Marketing .
expenses (S&M) (37) (22) 68%
General & Admin N
expenses (G&A) (171) (122) 40%
Operating profit-

EBITDA 700 434 62%
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Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
and amortization reflects profit derived based
on gross profitless of operating expenses. Itis
reflection of profitability of operating business.

EBITDA grew by 62% YoY to X700 crore. EBITDA
marginimproved by 333 basis points to 21.8%
YovY. Gross profit to EBITDA conversion stood at
77%inFY22,ascomparedto 75%in FY21.



Sales &Marketing expense comprise of employee General &administrative expenses comprise of

costand expenses directly associated with employee cost (excluding the salary cost forming

sales, marketing & promotional activities. part of S&M), cloud and data center hosting charges
and expensesincurred for day-to-day operations
such asrent of facilities, professional fees, office
maintenance and other general expenses.

Operating expense break up

Particulars (In X crore) Category FY22 FY21 Change
Employee Cost S&Mand G&A 127 86 47%
Professional charges G&A 29 16 82%
Others expenses G&A 18 10 77%
Cloud and Data center hosting charges G&A 13 12 15%
Allowance for doubtful debts G&A 6 3 12%
Marketing expenses S&M 6 2 219%
Travelling expenses S&M 4 1 324%
Rent, rates & taxes G&A 2 9 (74%)
Office maintenance G&A 2 3 (36%)
Advertisement expense S&M 1 2 (31%)
Total 208 144 449

Employee cost

Particulars (InX crore) FY22 FY21 Change Employee cost at 4% of revenue in FY22, as against
3.7%inFY21.Increasein salary costis primarily

Salari d m 83 34%
a1aries and wages driven by net new additions (114 employees) in areas

Employee stock option 9 0 6261% of niche technology, yearly salary increments, and
cost restricted stock units (RSU) issued to employees.
Contribution to provident 5 1 272%

andother funds

Staff welfare expenses 2 2 (2%)

Total 127 86 47%

Cloud and Data center hosting
As abusiness model, we are deploying

Particulars (In X crore) FY22 FY21 Change new platforms on cloud.

Data center and hosting 8 8 (7%)

charges Cloud and data center hosting charges remain
constantat 0.4% of revenue in FY22, as compared to

Intemet.and cloud 5 4 (/0% FY21.Increase in cloud computing chargesis driven

computing charges by addition of new features/products on platforms.

Total 13 12 63%
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Other S&M expenses

Particulars (InX crore) FY22  FY21 Change Other S&M expense grew by 141% YoY to 211 crore. With
Marketing expenses 6 2 219% steady reopening of economies during the year, we

i o started to participate/attend large events such Mobile
Advertisement expense 1 2 (31%) World Congress- Barcelona, D2C Summit, Inc 42, and
Travelling expenses 4 1 324% other events, primarily driving increased spends.
Total 1 5 141%
Other G&A expenses

Particulars

(InXR crore) Category FY22 FY21 Change

Professional G&A 29
charges

Others G&A 18
expenses

Allowance for G&A 6
doubtful debts

Rent, rates & G&A 2
taxes

Office G&A 2

maintenance

Total 57

16 82%
10 77%
3 112%
9 (74%)
3 (36%)
41 40%

Other G&A expenses at1.8% of revenuein FY22,
asagainst1.7% in FY21. Expenses has largely

gone up duetoincreasein spends towards
professional charges and other general expenses.
Increase in provision for doubtful debts by I3
croreisasperapproved norm-based policy.

We have an Audit Committee approved policy on
norm-based provision for bad and doubtful debts.
Debtors are assessed at end of each reporting period
and provided for based on the policy. For enterprises
other than government (50% for debtor aged between
180-270 days and 100% for greater than 270 days).
Forgovernment customers we have a separate policy.
Provision created shall be higher of Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) or provision as determined by the policy.

Earnings before Interest & Taxes (EBIT)

EBIT grew by 67% YoY to R 659 crore and EBIT margin

improved by 374 basis points to 20.6% YoY.
Particulars (InX crore)

Amortisation on Platforms

Amortisation on Customer Relationship
Amortisation on Trade Name
Amortisation on Technology
Amortisation on Non-compete

Depreciation on tangible assets
Depreciation onright of use assets

Total Depreciation
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FY22  FY21
13 3

12 12

4 4

2 4

1 1

6 15

3 1

a1 40

Fixed assetsincluding IT assets are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives using the straight-

line method. Intangible assets are created attime

of acquisition based on purchase price allocation
methodology orinternal development of asset.
Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. Right-of-use
asset, represents leased assets (leased office space)
andis depreciated over their useful life.

Depreciationwas at 41 crorein FY22, as against

40 crorein FY21. Depreciation and Amortisation has
increased mainly due to capitalization of platform.

R 22 crore was capitalized towards platform deployment.
Decrease in depreciation on tangible assetsison
account of expiry of useful life of the assets.
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Other Income

We have an Audit Committee approved policy on
investments. Investments can be in form of liquid funds-
fixed deposits/term deposits with banks, housing finance
companies and saving scheme/securities/bonds issued
by the central government with a minimum rating of
"AAA"

Cash, cash equivalents, and current investments (in form
of fixed deposits) were primarily held in INR and U.S.
dollars. We generally invest only in the financial assets of
issuers or funds with a minimum credit rating of "AAA".

During the year, our fixed deposits were placed with
housing finance companies such as HDFC Limited ,LIC

Particulars (InX crore) FY22 FY21 Housing Ltd and other banks which are in line with our
Interestincome 13 1 investment policy.
Gain on liquid funds - 2 We generated an average interestyield of 3.9% in FY22.
) ' We were able to improve average interest yield during
Foreign exchange gain - 0 the year by implementing sweep-in structure to optimize
Miscellaneous income 3 5 our currentaccount balances. Cash palance heldin
current (USD accounts) generate no interest. Refer to
MF Provisions written back 0 4 cash, cash equivalent section for more details.
Total 16 22 Otherincome also includes interest received onincome
taxrefundof R 2.6 crore.
Profit after tax (PAT . .
(PAT) Direct and Indirect tax payouts
Particulars (InX crore) FY22 FY21 (In% crore) GST Ml Direct tax payout
Profit before tax 674 415 784
Taxexpenses (135) (59) H
Profit after tax 539 356 500
437
Profit after tax grew by 51% YoY at 539 crore. Profit 137
after tax margin improved by 162 basis points to “
16.8%. Increase in profit after taxisin line with our
revenue growth andimproved profitability.
FY20 FY21 FY22

The effective taxrate was at 20% (of PBT) for FY22
,as against 14% (of PBT) in FY21. Effective tax rate
has gone up due to growth in domestic business.

Income tax assessment for Tanla has been completed
till AY 20-21. Refund of R12 crore is expected based
onthe completed assessment by Q2FY23.

Annualreturn under Goods and Service Tax Act(GST) has
been filed up to AY 20-21for Tanla and its subsidiaries.
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Tax contribution to exchequerin FY22 was

at784 crore. The contribution includes corporate
income taxes and contributions by way of withholding
taxesandindirect taxes such as GST in India.
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Earnings per share

Earnings per share grew at 57% to 339.77.EPS growth

The weighted average equity shares usedin computing
driven by combination of PAT growth and lower equity

earnings per equity share are as follows:

shares due to buyback.
Weighted average
Particulars (InX crore) FY22 FY21 number of share FY22 FY21
Basic 39.77 2527 Basic 13,56,00998 14,09,24,354
Diluted 39.74 2627 Diluted 13,56,86,931 14,09,24,354
Dividend

The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of R 2 per equity share (200% of face value) for the year FY22,
subject to shareholders approval in the Annual General Meeting resulting in a cash outflow of R 26 crore.

Dividend per shareinz
2.00'
0.35
0.20 0.25 030
FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

1. Proposed for FY22. Face value of equity shareis 3 1per share
2.For FY21, Tanla has paid interim dividend of R 1per share in July 2020 and a final dividend of R 1per sharein Oct 2021.
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Consolidated balance sheet

In crores, unless otherwise stated March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plantand equipment 43 30
Platforms 49 40
Customer Relationships 26 38
Brands 0 4
Technology 1 4
Non Compete 3 4
Intangible assets underdevelopment 40 6
Goodwill 135 135
Capitalworkin progress 13 -
Right-of-use-lease assets 48 4
Financial assets 71 10
Deferred tax assets (net) 40 43
Other non-current assets 44 29
Total non-current assets 513 347
Tradereceivables 560 373
Cashandbank balances 862 584
Other Financial assets 395 257
Other current assets 65 52
Total current assets 1,882 1,266
Total assets 2,395 1,613
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity share capital 14 14
Otherequity 1,340 879
Total equity 1,354 893
(a) Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 45 3
Other financial liabilities 0 o)

Provisions 7
(b) Other non-currentliabilities 0 0
Total Non-Current Liabilities 53 10
Current liabilities
Trade payables 679 506
Lease liabilities 9 1
Other financial liabilities 244 192
Other currentliabilities 27 8
Short term provisions 1 1
Liabilities for current tax (net) 28 2
Total current liabilities 988 710
Total equity and liabilities 2,395 1,613

Tanla Annual Report2021-22 36



Equity and Liabilities

The Company has only one class of shares - equity shares of par value of R1/- each. The authorized share capital of the
Company was 20,00,00,000 equity shares. As on March 31,2022, paid-up share capitalisX 13.57 crore as against X13.60

croreason March 31, 2021.

Equity share movementis detailed below:

As on March 31,2022

As on March 31, 2021

R

Equity Shares No. of Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,60,36,450

Add: Issued and allotted during the year 414,750
Less: Shares bought back during the year (7,05,677)
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,57,45,523

Equity share buyback update

The board of Directors approved buyback of equity
shares, and for an aggregate amount not exceeding 65
crore at a price not exceeding 1,260 per equity share,
payablein cash, from the open market through stock
exchange mechanismin accordance with the applicable
regulationsin July 2021.

The buyback programwas completed in September
2021and bought back 705,677 equity shares ata volume
weighted average price of R920.88 per equity share. It
deployed R 6498 crore excluding transaction cost which
represents 99.98% of the maximum buyback size.

Securities premium reverse stood at X 428 crore
asonMarch 31,2022, as against X 507 crore ason
March 31,2021. The net decrease by X 79 croreis on
account of buyback of equity shares during the year.

Employee stock options outstanding account stood
atI 9 croreason March 31,2022, as against X 2 crore.
Theincrease by 7 croreisonaccount ofissue of
Restricted stock units (RSU) during the year.

The movementinretained earningsis onaccount

of profitgenerated of R 539 crore and payment
of dividend of R 14 crore to the shareholders.
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| R

13,60,36,450
414,750
(7.05,677)
13,57,45,523

No.of Shares |
14,569,71,699
6757503
(1,6692,752)
13,60,36,450

Reserve & Surplus

Particulars (InX crore)

Capitalreserve

Capitalredemption
reserve

Generalreserve

Securities premium
reserve

Employee stock
options outstanding
account

Retained earnings

Foreign currency
translationreserve

Otheritems of other
comprehensive
income

Total

25
428

852
16

1,340

14,59,71,699
6757503
(166.92,752)
13,60,36,450

25
507

879
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Lease liabilities

Ind-AS 116 on lease accounting provides for recognition
of the asset and liability inrespect of leased assetsin the
books of lessee and hence, the asset/liability in respect
of leased office premises of the group companies has
been quantified and disclosed under non-currentand
current assets/liabilities for values accountable after one
year and within one year respectively.

Other non-current financial liabilities

R 0.4 crorerepresents amount held in unclaimed
dividend current account with respect to unpaid
dividend to shareholders over the years due to various
reasons. The Company has a registrar and the secretarial
team overseeing this liability, which on expiry of seven
years from declaration of the dividend, is transferred to
the central government’s IEPF account.

Long term provisions

Provisions represents liability accruedin respect of
gratuity R 6 crore and leave encashment X 2 crore
payable to employees on retirement, resignation, or
superannuation, quantified and charged to expenses at
the end of each reporting period.

Gratuity liability is met through a policy held
with Life Insurance Corporation of India to
cover the liability asand when a claim arise.

Leave encashmentrepresents the liability
accrued as per the leave policy of the Company,
payable to employees upon retirement,
resignation or superannuation.

Both gratuity and leave encashment are accrued
based onindependent actuarial valuation.

Other non-current liabilities

R 0.5 crore comprises of security deposits received from
customers towards Trubloqg registration fees.

Trade payables

Trade payables comprises of payables towards

mobile carriers and other suppliers. Trade payables

at 679 crorein FY22,as comparedI 506 crorein FY21.
Increase in trade payable is due to growth in volume of
transactions. Day payable outstanding (DPO) stood at
108 daysin FY22 asagainst 105 daysin FY21onaccount
of better credit terms negotiated with mobile carriers
and other suppliers.
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Other current financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities comprises of cost of services
notyet billed to the Company and payable to capital
creditors. Cost of services grew by 38% to < 233 crore
driven by growth in volume of transactions. As on date of
reporting, 98% of unbilled cost has been billed by mobile
carriers.

Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities comprises of statutory
liabilities, whichincreased by X 27 crore, due payable
to Government authorities towards GST and TDS.
These liabilities are settled on monthly basis, within the
specified due dates.

Liabilities for current tax
Liabilities for current tax represents tax payable in our

Singapore subsidiary and another domestic subsidiary
operating out of SEZ facility in Hyderabad.
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Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars (InX crore) 31-Mar-22

Land 8 8
Buildings 2 3
Furniture 0 0
Computers 32 18
Office Equipment 0 0]
Vehicles 0 0
Air conditioners 0 0
Total 43 30

Increase in net block of Property, Plant & Equipment is
due tonetadditions of 19 crore towards IT&network.
Cloud focused strategy resulting in lower depreciation
costandreflecting assetlite model we operatein.

Intangible assets and intangible
assets under development

Net block (InX crore) 31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21

Platforms 48 40
Customer Relationships 26 38
Trade name 0 4
Technology 1 4
Non Compete 3 4
Total 79 90
Intangible asset under 40 6

development

During the year, platform deployment cost of R 22

crore was capitalized. Otherintangible assets such as
customer relationships, trade name, technology and
non-compete that arose as a part of Karixand Gamooga
acquisitions are being amortized over their useful life
ascertained under Purchase Price Allocation (PPA).

Intangible assets under development represents
platform whichis beinginternally developed,
whose costincludes third party consultant
chargesandasmallcomponent of internal cost.
These costs would be capitalized in Q2FY23.
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Goodwill

Goodwillis tested forimpairment at the end of
eachreporting period using a value-in-use model.
Carrying value of goodwill as of March 31, 2022, stood
atx135crore.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress represents on-going work
towards our Innovation and Experience center coming
upinHyderabad.

Right- of-use-assets

Right-of-use-assets primarily consist of buildings for
corporate offices having various lease terms. The
Company has adopted Ind AS 116, for lease accounting.

Other financial assets

Particulars (In X crore)

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

EMD deposits 6 8
Rental deposits 4 2
Other deposits 0 1
Bank deposits with 60 0
more than twelve months

maturity’

Interestreceivable - 0

EMD deposits represents security deposits placed with
customers while bidding for tenders, primarily contracts
with government agencies and PSU'’s. Rental deposits
increased during the year due to addition of new facilities.

1. Fixed deposits are with placed with HDFC
Limited having a remaining maturity for more
than twelve months and hence categorized
under other non-current financial assets.

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax arises on account of timing differences

in depreciation charge between Income Tax Act and
Companies Actandisreversedin future periods. During
the year, deferred tax asset has decreased by X 3 crore
duetothereversal of timing differences on depreciation
onassets.
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Other non-current assets Trade receivables

Particulars (In X crore) 31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 Trade receivables stood at 2 560 crore in FY22,as
Income tax asset 40 30 comparedtoX 373in FY21. Average day sales
outstanding (DSO) decreased to 54 daysin FY22,
asagainst 58 daysin FY21. Improvementin DSOis
onaccount of better collection cycle management
tracked as a key metric across the Company.

Capitaladvances 4 -

Income tax assetsincreased by R 10 crore due
toincrease in TDS receivable which will be offset
against subsequentyear'sincome tax payable.

Capitaladvances represents advance paid towards
leasehold improvementsin leased facilities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents Cash, cash equivalents composition
Cash, cash equivalents grew by 58% to X 922 crore in Particulars (InX crore) 31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
FY22,asagainst * 584 crorein FY21.

Restricted cash 19 47
Restricted cash are held as margin money deposits

Currentaccount-INR 59 45

given for bank guarantees and cash credit limits.
Decrease inrestricted cashis due to revisionin Current account- USD 321 213
our cash credit limits held across banks during the

year. We generated strong cash flowsinour ILD Fixed Deposits 463 279
business, resultinginincrease in our USD balance. Fixed Deposits having 60 -

maturity > 12 months

We have placed fixed deposits with HDFC Bank,

HDFC Limited, Axis Bank, LIC Housing Ltd, State Total 922 584
Bank of India, ICICI Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank and

otherswhich are in line with our investment policy.

Independentbank balance confirmation on quarterly
basis have been obtained by our statutory auditors.

Cash, cash equivalents break up

Current Current

account- account- Restricted

Particulars (InX crore) INR UsD cash
HDFC Bank 48 14 269 14 345
DBS Bank (Singapore) - 232 - 2 234
HDFC Limited' - - 160 - 160
Citibank-Dubai - 75 - - 75
Axis Bank 4 - 36 - 40
LIC Housing Ltd - - 20 - 20
State Bank of India 1 - 14 - 15
ICICI BANK 1 - 15 - 16
Kotak Mahindra Bank 5 - 9 - 14
Others 0 - - 3 3
Total 59 321 523 19 922

1. Fixed deposits are with placed with HDFC Limited having a remaining maturity for more than twelve months
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Other financial assets

Particulars (InX crore) 31-Mar-22

Accruedincome represents unbilled revenue accrued as
atend of each month. As an industry practice invoicing
happensinthe subsequent month post reconciliation.
Accruedincome for FY22,is12% of revenue. As on date

Accruedincome 386 255
X of reporting, 92% of unbilled revenue has been billed to
Interestreceivable 7 2
customers.
Otherreceivable 2 0
Total 395 256 Interest receivable representsinterest accrued on fixed
depositsand not yet credited to the depositaccount
by banks are recognized under other financial assets.
Other current assets

Particulars (InX crore) 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Balances with revenue authorities represents
taxdeducted at source (TDS), which is adjusted

Advancesrecoverablein 6 8 ) i

cash or kind against subsequent tax dues or refunded with
interest on completion of tax assessments.

GST Input credit 17 4

Balances with revenue 42 40

authorities

Total 64 52

Liquidity management

Our primary source of cash, cash equivalents and
currentinvestmentsis funds generated from our
business operations. Over past few years, principal
use of cash has been to support operations resulting
from growth, capital expenditure and to return cash
to shareholdersin form dividend and buyback.
OnMarch 31,2022, cash, cash equivalents, and
currentinvestments (in form of fixed deposits) were
primarily heldinINR and U.S. dollars. We generally
invest only in the financial assets of issuers or
funds with a minimum credit rating of "AAA”.

We are a debt free Company, and our cash generation
capital is sufficient to meet our working capital
requirements. Other sources of liquidity are available
to usthrough various credit facilities, if required.
Condensed cash flowis givenin the table below:

Particulars (InX crore) 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Operating Cash flow 486 561 (13%)
Capital expenditure 62 32 Q4%
Free cash flow 424 529 (20%)
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Analysis of consolidated statement of cash flow

Particulars (In X crore)

Net cash flow from operating activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

Net cash flow from financing activities

Netincreasein cash, cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash, cash equivalents at the end of the year

Fixed deposits with maturity greater than twelve months

Cash, cash equivalents

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
486 561 (13%)

(112) (10) 1034%

(97) (168) (42%)

278 383 (27%)

584 201 191%

862 584 48%

60 - -

922 584 58%

InFY22, cashinflows from operating activities
decreased by 75 croretoX 486 crore. Thisis
particularly due to higherincome tax payouts.

Cash outflows from investing activities were

atX M2 crore. Capital expenditure on platforms, IT&
networkincreased by 94% as compared to FY21, due
to significant made investments towards platform.

Analysis of consolidated statement of cash flow

(inXcrore)
12 1
486
584
Opening Operating Interest Issue of
CCE cash flow &other shares
income
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(©)

Lease
liabilities-
net

INnFY22, free cash flowwas atR 424 crore. The free cash
conversionrate, defined as free cash flow as percentage
of profit after tax, decreased to 79% compared to 149%in
FY21 largely due to significant investments in platform.

Net cash outflows from financing activities were
at 97 crorein FY22, comparedtoX 168 crorein
FY21. The cash outflows in FY22 resulted from

buyback of equity shares and dividend payouts.

(14)

(62)
(82)
922
Dividend Capital Buyback Closing
paid expenditure CCE
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Tanlais in line with Best-in-Class peers across growth, and have leading efficiency

and return ratios

Growth

Gross Margin

EBITDA Margin

Twiio. I 2%  RingCentral 72% Tenlo | 22%
Sinch NG 37% Twilio |GG /5% Sinch Il 5%
Tenla |G 37% Tenle | 28% RingCentral | -
RingCentral 35% Sinch [N 24% Twilio | -
EBITDA to GM )
conversion PAT Margin

Tenla | 77%
Sinch I 21%
RingCentral | -

Twilio | -

Tenla | 17%
Sinch I 6%
RingCentral | -

Twilio | -

1. Source Company’s fillings. Period considered for Tanla (FY22) and for global peers (CY21)

2.0rganic growth has been considered in the above comparison

Tanla Annual Report2021-22

43



Financial ratios

Following are ratios for the current financial year and their comparison with the preceding financial year, along with

explanations where the change has been 25% or more.

Particulars (In X crore)

Average day sales outstanding (in days)
Currentratio

Gross margin %

Operating profit- EBIDTA %

Profit tax margin %

Free cash flow as % of PAT

ROCE % (excluding cash, cash equivalents)

Returnonnetworth %

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 Change
54 58 (7%)

19 1.8 6%

28.3 24.7 3.65

218 19.5 3.33

16.8 15.2 1568

79 149 (47%)

136 127 9%

40 40 0%

Internals controls and adequacy

The purpose of our system of internal control over
financial reporting is to provide reasonable assurance
that financial reportingis reliable and compliant with
generally accepted accounting principles. Ourinternal
control systems consists of internal controls and risk
management systems for financial reporting, which also
coversthe boarder business environmentandis part of
the overall risk management system of the Company.

We have defined and implemented internal controls
alongthe value chain on aprocess and sub-process
level to ensure that sound business objectives

are setinline with the organization’s strategic,
operational, financial and compliance goals.

Our policies, procedures, and measures are
designed to ensure compliance of Company’s
financial reports with applicable laws and standards.
We analyze new statues, standards, and other
pronouncements concerning Ind AS accounting
anditsimpact on our financial statements.

Ourrisk management framework has both preventive
and detective controls, including for example
automated and non-automated reconciliations,
segregated duties with two-person responsibility,
authorization conceptsin our software systems,

and corresponding monitoring measures.

Third party consultant independently reviews

and analyse the effectiveness of internal controls
over financial reporting and shares the results of
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the assessment to the management. The Audit
Committee reviews the results of the assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal controls over
financial reporting. The assessment, conducted by
management and statutory audit, concludes that
Tanlaandits subsidiaries had an effective internal
control system over financial reporting in place.

We also have external parties such as KPMG
Assurance and Consulting services LLP since
FY19 whichindependently reviews all receipts and
payments across the Group. M/s BDO India LLP
has been appointed as GST auditors since FY20.
Secretarial compliance review is undertaken for
the group by BSR &Associates since FY20.

M/s Deloitte Touche Tohmastu India LLP has been
the internal auditor since FY20 and will continue to be
internal auditors for the financial year FY23. Deloitte
has carried out the internal audit based on the internal
audit plan, whichis reviewed each yearin consultation
with the statutory auditor and approved by the Audit
Committee. The internal audit processis designed to
review adequacy of internal controls with significant
coverage of all areas of Company's operations.

The Audit Committee reviews internal audit reports
submitted by the internal auditors. The action taken
trackeris also reviewed forimplementation of the
suggested corrective actions. The Audit Committee
also meets the statutory auditors to ascertain their
views on the adequacy of internal control systems.
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Risk Management

Our strategic plan and regular operations expose us to several strategic, financial, operational and legal and regulatory risks.
We have putin place structure, procedures and control systems to detect risks and implement appropriate measures to
prevent, mitigate and minimize the impact. Our enterprise risk management framework is based on the principals laid out

below:

A

<«—— Building blocks ——»

Strategic
direction

—

Defined risk
policy,
procedures and
framework and
audit programs

Strategic
objectives &
priorities

Profitable growth

Scale at pace

Customer for life

Obsess about
customer success

Be agile

Create an attractive

destination for
exceptional talent

Quantitative
metrics
management and
analytics

Integrated risk management framework- Driving organization resilience

—»

Risk
Key risk Eco management Multi layered
category system process governance
Identification- Audit Committee
Governance Custemess existing/emerging of the Board
Assessment- )
Strategic Partners inherent and R'Séhél;ﬁ%ee”;em
residual
) ) Risk Management
Operational Investors R'Stl;‘a;rgigtee & team- HOD of
respective functions
Legaland Regulators Tresima Busmess_umts &
regulatory functions
Employees Monitoring
Social Reporting
Auditing
Continuous Change in risk culture Continuous
improvement behavior, its impact, improvement
through industry enabling risk culture through industry
benchmarking awareness and benchmarking

&
<
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Framework foundation

training programs

v

v
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Risk identification and mitigation

Risk category

Competition risk

Customer preference
risk

Regulatory risk
impacting revenue

Informationand Cyber
security risk

Legal, Regulatory and
Compliance risk
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Description and Impact

As a platform Company, we work in a very domain
intensive environment, hence making it difficult for
the competition to enter. However, the solutions that
we offer face a huge competition from players within
the ecosystem.

Globally application to peer (A2P) as achannel to
communicate with end users has been growing
steadily. However, modes of customer engagement
are changing rapidly. Inability to enhance our
platform capabilities and expand product portfolio
may impact growth and margins.

Application to peer (A2P) communication is subject
to extensive regulation by TRAland respective
regulators such as RBIfor banks, IRDA forinsurance,
SEBI for capital markets etc. Any change in sector
specific regulation and TRAI regulation may impact
volumes and revenue.

Arisk that could arise if we fail to provide secure,
reliable andresilient technology landscape within
the organization for protecting the confidentiality,
integrity, availability of systems/data which may
impact our customer relationships and brand image.

Therisks that arises from non-compliance to
regulations governing Corporate governance and
disclosures requirements could lead to financial
expsoure and reputation risk.

Unresolved billing disputes with customers could
lead to non-payment of invoices resulting in litigation
costs.

Mitigation Plan

We have deep relationships with
our customers and they are deeply
embedded with our platforms. 50
of our top customers are with us for
more than five years.

We have a dedicated customer
successteamthat enables
solutioning, timely delivery,
successful deploymentand
continuous customer support.

We have platforms for all

channels and are making

significant investments to further
enchance our offerings. We

have also partnered with new

age communication platforms to
strengthen and expand our product
portfolio.

Our global expansion plans will help
us mitigate the impact onrevenue
duetoany changein country/
sector specific regulation.We have
appointed a Chief Trust Officer. All
our platforms are GRC complaint.

Tanlais certified with Information
Security Management system-1SO/
IEC 27001:2013 and the certificate is
renewed annually. Our platforms are
also GDPR compliant which ensures
compliance to data security.

An effective compliance
management frameworkis
implemented to track, monitor and
reporton compliance status across
organization.

An effective invoice acceptance
processisin place to minimize
billing disputes. We have a customer
credit management policy which
determines the financial health of
the customer.
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Risk category

Talent risk

Financial risk
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Description and Impact

Inability to retain high performing employees with
extensive domain knowledge willimpact growth plan.

Liquidity risk-To maintain adequate liquidity to meet
working capital requirements.

Mitigation Plan

Bestin class work environment
across all locations along with
employee welfare policies and
competitive compensation package
are provided to attract, motivate and
retain employees.

We are working actively on
succession planning and

skill development to reduce
dependency onlimited number of
resources acrossall levels.

Arobust customer credit risk
management frameworkis
implemented to identify and
maintain credit risks at acceptable
limits.

We maintain our DSO's at optimal

levels to ensure minimum risk to
working capital requirements.
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Employees

Our employees make a significant contribution to our success. We want to attract and retain talented employees and
supportthemin their development and growth. To do so, we cultivate a working environment that inspires and connects

people.

Ataglance

— 638employees
— Promotinginclusion and diversity

— Genderdiversity-23%

Employee engagement index-86%

— Launch of Tanla academy

Strategy

Ouremployees are key to successful implementation of
our strategy. We are convinced of the value of excellent
employees, leaders and working conditions, and strive to
give our employees the tools and skills necessary to be
able toinnovate and create products and platforms.
With this aim in our mind, we launched Tanla Academy
whichis designed on the following principles:

— Opportunities for all, with flexibility to opt in/out

— Dedicated physical space to foster
collaboration, networking and learning

Head count by department

R&Dand Sales &
Innovation Marketing
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— Adultlearning principles leveraging
field & forum approach

— Leadersbuildleaders-promote teaching one another

We want to further strengthen our innovative power

with attractive working conditions and are making
investmentsin this direction. We are in process of
partnering with top business school for customized
training programs to drive product innovation. We have
partnered with leading global experts across domain to
facilitate immersive sessions to build thought leadership
and cascade learnings across team.

Competition for Talent

Attracting and retaining the best employeesis crucial to
our success. Having an attractive and compelling total
offer package for employeesis becomingincreasingly
important given the strong competition for the best
qualified employees and leaders. We are constantly
working on measures toincrease attractiveness.

We added 114 net new employees during the year
including senior management. The entire hiring
processwas remote and touchless. We leveraged
technology to engage with candidates. New employee
were onboarded via virtual sessions and necessary
infrastructure was enabled for them to be productive
from day one.

Fy2o M Fy21

Products Support
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Inclusion and Diversity

Promoting and valuing diversity across all hierarchical
levelsisanintegral part of our strategy. We want to
reflect this diversity among our employees, too, because
itenables them to better meet our customers’ needs.
Forus, diversity means, among other things, having
people from different backgrounds working at our
Company who candraw on theirindividual perspectives
and skills to grow our business. By valuing and promoting
employee diversity, we boost ourteams’ performance
&power of innovation, motivation and employees’
identification with the Company.

Employee age structure
(Total: 638 of which 23% iswomen, as of March 31,2022)

427

We strive to foster a working environment based on
mutual respect, trust and appreciation. We expect
inclusive conduct from allemployees and our leaders.

Diversity alsorelates to the Company's demographic
profile. Ouraimis to create a suitable framework to help
maintain the employability of our personnel at all stages
of life and ensure the availability of qualified employees
over thelongterm.

[ Men B Women

Till25yrs 26-39yrs

40-54yrs 55yrs&up

Employee serviceability

209

" Men M Women

O-1vYr 1-3VYrs
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5-10VYrs 10+ Yrs
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Learning and development

Learningand development are essential success factors for a strong culture. The skillsand competencies of our employees
are critical for profitable growth and lasting success. For this reason, we want to step up our efforts to promote continuous,
self-directed learning and learning from others. Talent development opportunities and support are open to all employees.

Digital learning formats play an importantrole in our development offerings. We have tied up with leading online e-learning
platforms and encourage employees to embark on upskilling and continuous learning &development. Employees spentan
average of five hours during the year on training. Trainings were conducted for upskilling across new age technologies such
as Blockchain, Al/MLamong others.

Employee well-being

Tanla follows a ‘People’ first policy. We, at Tanla, believe that happy &healthy employees make a happy and healthy
workspace. We believe a Company can attain sustainable growth only by ensuring that our employees and those around
them have a healthy lifestyle & environment to operate/work in. We take great pride in prioritizing the health, safety, and
welfare of our employees &their dependents. Hence, we focus on two main aspects namely - Health (Physical, Mental &
Emotional) & Safety.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, we went digital Btanla

with anaugmented focus on online service $aix  2cAMOOGA
delivery via WhatsApp Chatbot to ensure 24*7
supportto our employees.

Btanla
% 2

s
I got my
& Covid-19 Vaccine

Some of the key initiatives undertaken during the
year:

- Released COVID-19 fund assistance for all
employees and their dependents

- Oxygen concentrators were organized and kept
ready across all Tanla offices

- Emergency drugs, hospitalization support,
ambulance services, and support
were provided 24*7 for all employees &their

dependents

- Tanlaalsolaunched Care Calls for our
Covidimpacted employeesto keep in touch
and understand their well-being

- The "Employee #WFH Wellness package” was
offered to help them adapt to the changed
reality and cope with the psychological effects
of the pandemic

- Conducted vaccination drives

- EveryFriday onthe monthis“No Meeting
Friday' at Tanla where we have been
organizing ‘Funtastic Fridays' ( Fun Fridays) for
allemployees'’.

WITH VIVEK MURALIDHARAN

Awards and Recognition e
As atoken of gratitude for allemployees’ efforts, —

we have launched an exclusive Rewards & ‘ ; ) Laughter Yoga
Recognition platform called mPower. With this : . SOV AVES A =
exclusive platform, we recognize peers who . R s - Tosomuaotn 9

have shown exemplary skills right on the spot.

Employees canredeem their rewards points as
gift cards with awide range of in-store and online
options to choose from..
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Our ESG Journey

We, at Tanla, commit to United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals and embed
theminour five aspirations - Green Planet,
Positive Workplace, Empowered Communities,
Business Integrity and Information Security.

InFY22, we conducted a materiality assessment to
identify and prioritize the most pressing issues for our
internal and external stakeholders, thatimpact our

operations, products and brand perception over time.

Primary and secondary surveys were conducted to

identify the requirements of key stakeholders, including

Material KPIs for Tanla
Three-step materiality analysis process

Pooling of
sustainability issues

Pooling of sustainability
issues from reporting
frameworks and
sustainability trends

Prioritization

Prioritization of the top
issues based on
stakeholder surveys
and benchmarking

customers, investors and employees. We have also
benchmarked our operations against leading peers
across the sector to identify ten material issues across
the ESG pillars for sustainable development and plotted
short, medium and long term goalsin our ESG journey.

Finalization

Finalization of top 10
material issues from the
top major issues

Material issues for Tanla

Environment

— Climate change

Social

— Employee engagement and talent retention

— Labor practices, D&

— Customer privacy
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Governance

— Business ethics
— Corporate governance

— DataprivacyandIT security

— Employee health and safety
— Customer relationship

— Corporate Social Responsibility



Reimagining ESG at Tanla

Green Planet

We work towards creating resource efficiency fora
greener and cleaner tomorrow and we aspire to become
Carbon Neutral by 2025. We follow an RRR strategy

of Reduce, Review & Restore to reach our goals.

— Reductionin consumption &thereby emissions

— Review Consumption pattern &
Transition to Renewable Energy

— Restore CO2 balance by planting

trees to Offset carbon footprint

Positive Workplace

Ourinitiatives towards making the workplace
Fair &Equitable for our employeesinclude

— Employee skill development
— Rewards and recognition programs

— Diversity and Inclusion

Empowered Community

We cultivate inclusive development within
the community and improve academic
competencies among students to make
them future ready. Our projectsinclude

— Quality education and scholarship programs
— Skilldevelopment and employment

— Employee volunteering hours
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Business Integrity

We are committed to deliver highestlevel of
businessintegrity, transparency and governance
across all our stakeholders: Customers, Partners,
Investors, Regulators, and Employees through:

— Corporate governance policies
— Board committee and review

— Auditand compliance

Reporting and disclosures
Information Security

We conduct our business with strong data
protection policies and integrate data security
&data privacy as a key pillar to our overall
robust governance structure through:

— Datagovernance policy

— Datasecurity and privacy risk management
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Environment related initiatives under ESG - Steps towards creating a greener and cleaner tomorrow - aligning with UN
SDGs 7,11,12,13,17

Carbon Footprint Study of offices of Tanla was conducted by ClI for FY20 and FY21. The locations considered under this
study were Bangalore, Chennai, Hyderabad, Gurgaon and Mumbai. The emissions are classified under Scope 1, Scope 2, and
Scope 3 emissions with certain operational boundaries to carry out the study. GHG inventorisation tool has been custom
made as per the requirements by following the GHG Standard protocol for calculating the emissions. With effect from FY22,
Tanlais carrying out the study internally.

The methodology for calculation has been explained below.

Categories UuoM FY20 FY21 FY22
Scopel TCO2 28 11 12
Scope 2 TCO2 1632 1081 976
Scope3 TCO2 218 150 376
Total Emissions TCO2 1879 1242 1364
Employee Count Numbers 487 565 680
Total Built up area Sq Ft. 74100 74100 74100
Emissionintensity T CO2/Employee 3.86 2.20 2.01
Emissionintensity kg CO2/Sq Ft. 25.35 16.75 18.41

Summary of GHG Emissions: FY20, FY21and FY22 available at www.tanla.com/esg/

GHG Emission target setting has been explained by CIlI based on benchmarking internally or by external comparison,
science-based targets etc. GHG mitigation opportunities have been suggested by Cll to bring down the GHG emissions. One
of the main mitigation opportunitiesis to increase share of renewable energy for the electricity consumption.

The action plan advised by Cll is to follow the GHG Management system by the organization and make it a regular practice
to collect data, account and analyse the GHG emissions and chalk out a plan to reduce the emissions year-on -year there by
aiming to become a carbon neutral organization as targeted.

GHG Emission Summary

1% 1% 1%

B Scopef
¥ Scope 2
B Scope 3
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Steps towards creating a greener
and cleaner tomorrow:

— Implemented and continue the ban on single use
plastic from September, 2021in all offices of Tanla.

— Signing of MoU with Government Medical
College, Mahbubnagar for plantation of
25,000 treesin 25 acres of the medical and
nursing college grounds in Mahbubnagar.

— Working towards LEEDs certification for the
Innovation & Experience centerin Hyderabad

Initiatives under S-Social- of ESG

Giving back to the society and creating a fair

and equatable workplace for our employees

For our employees

— Implemented "Speak Up" - Employee Redressal
Mechanism for Code Of Conduct & Code of Ethics

— Implemented EHS initiatives - In all offices, an ESG
Walk has been conducted with a senior employee
to check Employee Health &Safety adherence

— Educated employees on &implementation of
waste segregation at source in all Tanla offices

— D&lintegrationinto Hiring Policy

For the community

— Launched PILLARS initiative in government high
schoolinruralareatoimprove learning levels
of students. As part of PILLARS initiative:

— Includeddigital learningin classrooms and
digital study material for 560 hight school
students, delivered for 3 hours per day.

— Provided tabsto top 10 performers of
classes VIl - Xto encourage them to excelin
maths, science and social using the tabs.

— Conducted anartcamp, culturaleventand

sports day where in 250 students, 102 students,

325 students participated respectively. Thisis

to facilitate all round development of students.

— Implemented academic support (tuition
classes) after school for students of
classes VI-IXwho requried support to
improve theiracademic scores.

— Five months of special classes for 100
class X studentsin maths, science and
englishto prepare for state board exam.
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— Tied upwith Labour Net - Sambhav, an NGO,
for skilling and placement program, identified
100+ youth for training. Skill trained 108 youth and
placed 83 injobs like Data Entry and Sales with an
average monthly salary of approxmately of R12000/-.

Governance related initiatives under ESG
-Integrating ESG in our governance and
formally committing to ESG principles

Awareness sessions were conducted for the following
policies formulated & Implemented during the year:

— Diversity &Inclusion policy —implementation
guidelinesin the form of STEPIn Charter

— Supplier Code of Conduct towards
responsible sourcing & sessions conducted
to sensitize suppliers on SCoC

— Human Rights Statement towards becoming
more responsible corporate citizen

— EHS policy andimplementation mechanism
foremployees health & safety

— E-Waste and General Waste management policies
— Stakeholder engagement policy for community

— Conductedacommunity meeting as part of
engagements mechanism with stakeholdersin
community. Discussions were held with school
staff, parents, school management committee,
Sarpanch oninitiatives &impact planned as
defined in the stakeholder engagement policy

— Environmental advocacy - Training session for
employeestovistischools and build awareness
in high school students on global warming &
Climate Change-Project Green Baton.
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Board's Report

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the twenty sixth report of Tanla Platforms Limited (hereinafter referred as
“Tanla" or "the Company”) on the Company's business and operations together with the audited financial statements
(both standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31,2022.

1. State of affairs and financial position

(RinLakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from operations 1,24,687.30 8918755 3,20,597.33 2,34146.55
Other income 273156 3,082.06 1,612.62 2193.48
Total Income 1,27,418.86 92,269.61 3,22,209.95 2,36,340.03
Cost of services 1,0293393 71,087.64 2,29,793.74 1,76,380.05
Operating expenses 8,441.84 4,786.23 20,786.56 14,420.57
Depreciation 643.59 7193 4,085.63 3,956.51
Finance cost 16.50 Q.72 13218 107.48
Total Expenses 112,034.86 76,595.52 2,54,798.11 1,94,864.61
Profit before tax and exceptional items 15,384.00 15,674.09 67,411.84 41,475.42
ComraTeTIIS T o e —
Profit before Tax 15,384.00 19,646.97 67,411.84 41,475.42
Less: Tax expense 3,5156.76 3,791.04 13,48393 5,861.67
Profit After Tax 11,868.24 15,855.93 53,92791 35,613.75
Other Comprehensive Income 4679 (173.67) 68790 (535.64)
Total Comprehensive Income 11,915.03 15,682.26 54,615.81 35,078.11
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 11,915.03 15,682.26 54,615.81 35,0781
Non-controlling interests - - - -
Retained earnings - opening balance 11,785.50 (2,712.55) 32,617.85 (1,638.02)
Add: Profit for the Year 1,868.24 15,855.93 5392791 35,613.75
Less: Dividend and dividend tax (1,353.31) (1,357.88) (1,353.31) (1,357.88)
Retained earnings - closing balance 22,300.43 11,785.50 85,192.45 32,617.85
Earnings per Share (EPS)-Basic 8.75 1.25 3977 25.27
Earnings per Share (EPS)-Diluted 8.75 11.25 39.74 25.27
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Consolidated Performance

Revenue grew by 37% YoY t0 X3,20,597.33 lakhs primarily
driven by combination of increased wallet share from our
existing business, changein ILD pricing, faster growth in
whatsApp and other non-sms channels, new customer
additions and creation of new revenue stream Trublog.

Cost of services grew by 30.3% YoY to 32,29,793.74
lakhs. Gross margin at 28.3% and increased by 365 basis
points YoY.

Net profit grew by 51.4% YoY to 539279 lakhs primarily
on account of growth in revenue and improved
profitability.

EPS grew by 57%t0339.77.

Standalone Performance
Revenue grew by 39.8% to %1,24,687.30 lakhs YoY .Cost
of services grew by 44.80% to ?1,02,933.93 lakhs YoY.

Net profit decreased by 25.1(%) to ?11,868.24 lakhs

YoY. Earnings per share (EPS) decreased by 22.2%
t0X8.75YoY. Reason for the reductionin net profit

and earnings per share isrecognition of one-time
exceptional gain onreversal of provision forimpairment
of investmentin subsidiary of *3,972.88 lakhs in 20-21.

COVID-19

During the first three months of 21-22, the second
wave of coronavirus caused heavy destruction

and mental disturbances to India’s population. The
Company continues to prioritize employee well-
being, health, and safety and is continuously taking
extensive measures to offer timely supportand care.

Company has provided financial support to the
employeesto meet the medical expenses for COVID
treatment and conducted extensive vaccination drives
foremployees and their families to ensure safety and
well-being of the employees and their families.

Dividend

For 21-22, the Board of Directors have recommended
afinal dividend of R2/- per equity share of face

value of R1/- each at their meeting held on April 29,
2022 as perthe divident distribution policy.

The final dividend on equity shares, if approved by the
members, would involve a cash outflow of R2,714.9 lakhs.

The Dividend Distribution Policy, in terms of
Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange
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Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations")is disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Reportandis uploaded onthe
Company's website www.tanla.com/investors.html

Transfer to Reserves

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the
Company as on March 31, 2022, after appropriations
of dividend paid was 322,300.43 lakhs.

Change in the nature of business, if any
Thereisno change in the nature of business of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or joint
venture, during the year under review.

Material changes and commitments affecting financial
position between the end of the financial year and date
of thereport

There have been no material changes and
commitments, which affect the financial position of

the Company, that have occurred between the end

of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of thisreport. except the following:

- Tanla Digital Labs Private Limited, (WoS of Tanla
Platforms Limited) incorporated a WoS. Tanla Digital
Labs Private Limited in the UK on 22nd June, 2022.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments
covered under section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual Report.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposit
from the public under ChapterV of the Act or
under the corresponding provisions of Section
73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013, and no
amount of principal or interest was outstanding
as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Consolidated Financial Results

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed
the affairs of the Subsidiaries. Inaccordance with
Sub Section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies
Act, 2013, your Company has prepared the
consolidated financial statements of the Company,
which forms part of this annual report.

As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies

Act, 2013 the Company has placed separate audited
financial statements of its Subsidiaries on its website
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www.tanla.com/investors.html. The annual accounts
of the Subsidiary Companies and the related detailed
information shall be made available to members
seeking suchinformation at any point of time.

The statement containing the salient features of the
Subsidiaries as per subsection (3) of section 129 read
withw rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and under Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 of the Companies Act 2013 in Form AOC -1is
annexed herewith as Annexure-1to thisreport.

Related Party Transactions

Allrelated party transactions that were entered into
during the financial year were onan arms’length
basisand wereinthe ordinary course of business.
There were no materially significant related party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship
or transactions with the Company, other than to the
extent of their shareholding and except the payments
made to themin the form of remuneration/sitting fee.

Inaccordance with Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the particulars of contract orarrangement
enteredinto, if any, by the Company with related
partiesreferred toin Section188(1) in Form AOC -2
isannexed herewith as Annexure- 2 to thisreport.

Insurance
Allthe properties andinsurable interests of the
Company including buildings have been fully insured.

Rating

The CARE ratings upgraded our ratings from CARE
Ato CARE A positive (for long term facilities) and
CARE Alto CARE Al+ (for short term facilities).

2. Business strategy and future outlook

Tanla Platforms Limited transforms the way the world
collaborates and communicates through innovative
CPaaS solutions. Founded in 1999, it was the first
company to develop and deploy A2P SMSCin India.

Today, as one of the world's largest CPaaS players, Tanla

processes more than 800 billioninteractions annually
and about 62% of India's A2P SMS traffic is processed
throughits distributed ledger platform-Trublog, making

itthe world's largest Blockchain use case. Tanla touches

over abillion lives carrying mission critical messages.
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Please refer MDA report of thisannual
report for details on bussiness hightlights
including products and platforms.

Management Discussion & Analysis

Interms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the
Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report highlighting the industry
structure and developments, opportunities and
threats, outlook, risks and concerns etc. is furnished
separately and forms part of this Annual Report.

Subsidiary, Associate & Joint Venture (JV) Companies
Ason March 31,2022, company has 6 direct
subsidiaries and 2 step-down subsidiaries. There

has been no material change in the nature of

the business of the subsidiaries. The changes

in subsidiaries during the yearisincludedinthe
Consolidated financial statements of the Company.

— Thejoint venture of the company TZ Mobile Private
Limited was voluntarily liquidated under the order of
National Company Law Tribunal dated March17,2022.

— During Q3FY22, the Company disposed its
investmentin Jengatron Gaming Private Limited.

— Tanla Digital Labs Private Limited, (WoS of Tanla
Platforms Limited) incorporated a WoS Tanla
Digital (India) Private Limited on July 2, 2021.

— TanlaPlatforms Limited incorporated a WoS.
Tanla Digital (India) Private Limited on July 6,
2021asits CSRarmto carry on CSR activities on
behalf of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

— Capitalsirilnvestments Private Limited, (WoS of
Tanla Platforms Limited) is under liquidation.

Further, Pursuant to the provisions of Section
129(3) of the Act a statement containing the
salient features of the financial statements of our
subsidiariesin the prescribed format AOC-1is
appended as Annexure-1to the Board'sreport.

Inaccordance with Section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including
the Consolidated financial statements and related
information of the Company and audited accounts
of each of its subsidiaries, are available on our
website, https://www.tanla.com/investors.html

During the year under review:

— Under ESOP 2015 Scheme, 4,14,750 equity shares
Re1/-eachwere allotted to the respective allottees.

— The Company bought back
7,05,677shares of Re 1/- each.
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3. Share Capital

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 stood at R13,57,45,523/- divided into 13,57,45,523
equity shares of Re 1/- each. The details of the share capital are as follows:

The Company has one class of equity shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid-up. Each shareholderis eligible for one vote per
every equity share held. As on April 01, 2021the paid-up equity share capital of the Company was 13,60,36,450/-

Change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

March 31,2022

Particulars No. of Shares

March 31, 2021

| E4 No.of Shares | 4

Share capital

Authorised Equity shares of Re. 1/- each 20,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up equity 13,567,45,623

share of Re.1/- each fully paid-up

20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000

13,567,45,5623 13,60,36,450 13,60,36,450

@ Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

March 31,2022

Particulars No. of Shares

March 31, 2021

| 2 No.of Shares | 2

Equity shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,60,36,450

Add: Issued and allotted during the year 414,750
Less: Shares bought back during the year 705,677
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,57,45,523

Buy Back during the year:

The Buyback of Shares of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company on July 22,
2021. The Buyback Opening Date was July 29, 2021and
the Buyback Closing Date was September 01, 2021. The
total number of Equity Shares bought back pursuant
tothe Buybackwere 7,05,677 Equity Shares ata price
of INR1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) per Equity Share.

Share Based Employee Benefit Schemes/Plans
During the year, a special resolution was passed for
approval of Tanla Platforms Limited - Restricted Stock
Unit Plan 2021 hereinafter referred to as (RSU 21 or Plan)
in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of

the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia,
administers and monitors the RSU 21 of the Company
in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

ESOP 2015 was approved by the shareholders on
September16th, 2015. ESPS 2018 was approved by
the shareholdersin the EGM held on September
17th, 2018.RSU 21, was approved by the shareholders
through postal ballot on May 19th 2021.
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13,60,36,450 14,59,71,699 14,59,71,699
414,750 6757503 6757503
705,677 1,6692,752 1,6692,752
13,57,45,523 13,60,36,450 13,60,36,450

The details of ESOP, ESPS &RSU pursuant to
Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021are provided in Annexure- 3 (i) to this Report.

The disclosure as required under Regulation 14 of SEBI
Circular CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/2/2015 dated 16th June,
2015 is also available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed at www.tanla.com/investors.html.

The Certificate from Secretarial Auditor of the
Company as required under SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021and any amendments thereto, with regard

to Company’'s ESOP, ESPS &RSU Scheme is
provided as Annexure- 3 (i) to this Report.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
The Company did not declare dividend during FY
2014-15, hence no unpaid/unclaimed dividend for
FY 2014-15 would be transferred to the IEPF.

The details of unpaid dividend are
published on the website of the company
at www.tanla.com/investors.html
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4. Corporate Governance

Our Corporate Governance Philosophy
Corporate Governance reflectsin the culture,
values, and policies of Tanla. Realizing the criticality
of sound corporate governance practices to
enhance shareholder and stakeholder trust, Tanla
observesthe highestlevel of ethicsin allits affairs.

Tanla's corporate culture of integrity, transparency
and accountability for efficient and ethical conduct
of businessreflects Tanla’'s commitment to
governance. Apart from complying with the statutory
requirements, effective systems and practices
towardsimproving transparency; implementing
internal controls and encouraging ethical practices
have beeninstitutionalized at workplace.

At Tanla, we firmly believe that corporate governance
standards should go beyond the law and must satisfy
the spirit of law and not just the letter of the law.

Report on Corporate Governance

Thereporton Corporate Governance for the year
ended March 31,2022, pursuant to Regulation 34 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, forms part of thisannual report.

A Compliance certificate on Corporate Governance
forthe FY 2021-22, from a Practicing Company
Secretary confirming compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance is attached to thereport
on Corporate Governance as Annexure-4.

Board Meetings held during the year
The Board of Directors of the Company duly met
8 times during the Financial Year 2021-22.
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The intervening gap between any two consecutive
Board Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of Board meetings and the attendance
of the Directors are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report (Annexure - 4).

Committees of the Board of Directors

AsonMarch 31,2022, the Board had five committees:
the Audit Committee, the Corporate Social
Responsibility and ESG Council, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management
Committee, and the Stakeholder's Relationship
Committee. Allthe Committees are constituted

in compliance with the provisions the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year, allrecommendations made by
the committees were approved by the Board.

Adetailed note on the Board and its Committees
is provided under the Corporate Governance
Reportwhich forms part of this Annual Report.

Company'’s Policy on Directors’ appointment and
remuneration

The current policyis to have an appropriate mix of
executive, non-executive and independent directors to
maintain the independence of the Board and separate
its functions of governance and management. The
policy forms part of the NRC policy of the company.

As of March 31,2022, the Board had eight (8) members,
two (2) of whom are executive directors, two (2) non-
executive and non-independent directors and four

(4) non-executive and independent directors.
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Thereis One Woman independent director on the Board.

The details of Board and committee composition,
tenure of directors, areas of expertise and

other details are available in the Corporate
Governance Report (Annexure -4).

The NRC policy formulates the criteria for
determining qualifications, competencies, positive
attributes and independence for the appointment
of adirector (executive / non-executive) and also
the criteria for determining the remuneration of
the directors, KMP, senior management and other
employees. The charter of the Committee with
detailed terms of reference is available on our
website https://www.tanla.com/investors.html.

We affirm that the appointment/reappointment of the
directorisas perthe termslaid outin the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Board Evaluation

The parameters and the process for evaluation of
the performance of the Board and its Committees
have been explainedinthe Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

Directors’ and officers' liability insurance

The company has obtained 'D &O liability insurance’in
place that covers the members of the Board including
the Independent Directors & Officers for such quantum
andrisks as determined by its Board of Directors.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted the
declaration of independence stating that they meet

the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation16 &25 of the SEBI (Listing Regulations) 2015.

The Independent Directors have also
confirmed that they have complied with
the Company's code of conduct.

Familiarization Program for Independent Directors
Interms of Clause 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, details of the familiarization program of the
Independent Directors are available on the website

of the Company i.e. www.tanla.com/investors.html

A separate meeting of the Independent
Directors was held on March 02, 2022.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013, your Directors confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanation obtained by them:

1. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the
financial year ended March 31,2022, the accounting
standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

2. Suchaccounting policies as mentionedinthe
notesto the financial statements have been
selected and applied consistently and judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
made so asto give atrue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year 2021-22 and of the statement of
profitandloss of the Company for that period,;

3. Properandsufficient care has been taken
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
recordsin accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

4. Theannualaccountsforthe year 2021-22 have
been prepared onagoing concern basis;

5. Thatthe Directors, had laid downinternal
financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that suchinternal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively;

6. Thatsystemstoensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws were in place
and were adequate and effectively mentioned
under various heads of the departments which
areinthenreporting to the Chairman & CEO.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Appointment

Mr. Aravind Viswanathan was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial
Personnel with effect from June 01, 2021.

Retirement and Resignation

Mr. G K Srinivas stepped down Chief Financial Officer and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect
from closure of the business hours on May 31, 2021.

Apartfromthe above, there were no
changesin the Directors and KMP during the
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financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Retirement by Rotation

As per the provisions of section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Article 134
of the Articles of Association of the Company,

Mr. Deepak Goyal (DIN: 01755263), Whole-time
Director, whose officeisliable to retire at the 26th
AGM, being eligible, seeks reappointment.

Based on performance evaluation and the
recommendation of the nomination and remuneration
committee, the Board recommends his reappointment.

Re-appointment of Director

Mr. Sanjay Baweja

Mr. Sanjay Baweja was appointed as an independent director
for the first term of three years effective August, 30 2019. His
office of directorship is due for retirement at the upcoming
26th General meeting.

As the Director did not consent to his re-appointment as
Independent Director for the second term, the Director
shall retire as Independent Director with effect from the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting on 26th August
2022.

Mr. Rohit Bhasin

Mr. Rohit Bhasin was appointed as anindependent
director for the first term of three years effective August,
30 2019. His office of directorship is due

forretirement at the upcoming 26th General

meeting. Based on the recommendation of the
nomination and remuneration committee and after taking
into account the performance evaluation

of hisfirst term of three years and considering the
knowledge, acumen, expertise, experience and

the substantial contribution, the committee has
recommended the appointment of Mr. Rohit Bhasin
tothe Board fora second term of two (2) years.

The Board, atits meeting held on July 25, 2022, approved
the reappointment of Mr. Rohit Bhasin as anindependent
director of the Company with effect from the 26th Annual
General meeting up to the conclusion of 28th Annual
General Meeting, whose office shall not be liable to retire
by rotation. The Board recommends his reappointment to
the shareholders. The notice convening the 26th AGM to
be held on August, 26 2022 sets out the details..
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Mr. Sanjay Kapoor

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor was appointed as an non-
executive director for the term of three years
effective August, 30 2019. His office of directorship

is due forretirement at the upcoming 26th General
meeting. Based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and after
taking into account the performance evaluation

of hisfirst term of three years and considering the
knowledge, acumen, expertise, experience and

the substantial contribution, the committee has
recommended the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Kapoor to
the Board foranext termof two (2) years.

The Board, atits meeting held on July 25, 2022, approved
the reappointment of Mr. Sanjay Kapoor

as an non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 26th Annual General meeting up to

the conclusion of 28th Annual General Meeting,

whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.

The Board recommends his reappointment to the
shareholders. The notice convening the 26th AGM

to be held on August, 26 2022 sets out the details..

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable
provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Internal Financial Control and their adequacy

The Board has adopted policies and procedures
forensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
fraud, error reporting mechanisms, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and
compliance systems established and maintained by the
Company, including the audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory
auditors and the reviews performed by management and
the relevant board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the
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Company'sinternal financial controls were adequate and
effective during 21-22. Please refer Internal control
systems and adequacy” in the Management Discussion
and Analysis report.

Risk Management

The Company follows a comprehensive system

of Risk Management. Your Company has adopted
aprocedure foridentification, assessment and
mitigation of probable risks. It ensures that all the
risks are defined and mitigated in accordance with
awell-structured risk management process.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee
reviewed the elements of risk and the steps taken to
mitigate the risks and in the opinion of the Board there
are no major elements of risk, which has the potential of
threatening the existence of the Company. Areport on
risk management and forms part of thisannual report.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to
regulate, monitor and report trading by designated
persons and theirimmediate relatives as per the
requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
This Code of Conduct also includes code for practices
and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price
sensitive information which has been made available
onthe Company's website at https://www.tanla.com/
media/images/Policies/Code_for_Disclosure_of
Unpublished_Price_Sensitive_Information.pdf

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act,
2013 and of Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has
established the necessary Vigil Mechanism for directors
and employeestoreport concerns about unethical
behavior. The said Policy provides for adequate
safeguard against victimization of directors/employees
who avail of such mechanism and provides access to
the Chairman of Audit Committee in exceptional cases.
No person has been denied access to the Chairman

of the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy

has been placed on website of the Company and

web link thereto is www.tanla.com/investors.html

During the year, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company.
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Particulars of Employees

The Company had 336 employees as of March 31,
2022. The Company affirms that remuneration to
the Directors and Key Managerial Personnelis as

per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The percentage increase inremuneration, ratio of
remuneration of each director and key managerial
personnel (KMP) (as required under the Companies Act,
2013) to the median of employees' remuneration, and the
list of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn,
asrequired under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014, form part of Annexure - 5 to this Board's report.

Interms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3)

of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including the
amendments thereto, a statement showing the names
and other particulars of the employees drawing
remuneration in excess of the limits set outin the said
rulesare providedin Annexure -5 to thisreport.

Annualreturn

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)
(a) of the Act, the Annual Returnas on March
31,2022 will be uploaded onthe Company's
website on at www.tanla.com/investors.html

5. Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Statutory Auditors

Atthe 23rd AGM of the Company, the members
approved appointment of M/s. MSKA & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration number
105047W as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
a period of b years from the conclusion of that AGM
till the conclusion of 28th AGM. The requirement to
place the matterrelating to appointment of auditors
for ratification by members at every AGM has been
done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act,
2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly,

no resolutionis being proposed for ratification of
appointment of statutory auditors at the AGM.

The Auditors’ Report for fiscal 2022 does not contain

any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
The Report forms part of this Annual Report.
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Internal Auditors

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmastu
India LLP as Internal Auditors for 21-22 and 22-23 to audit
processes. Itreports to the Audit Committee about

the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
system of your Company. The recommendations of

the internal audit team on improvements requiredin

the operating procedures and control systems are also
presented to the Audit Committee, for the teams to use
these tools to strengthen the operating procedures.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014 and Regulation 24A (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 the Board had appointed Ms. Madhu Lakhlan,
Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditors
to conduct Secretarial audit of the Company for the

FY 21-22. The Secretarial Audit Reportissued by Ms.
Madhu Lakhlan, Practicing Company Secretary in form
MR-3is enclosed as Annexure - 7 to this Annual Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report of Karix Mobile Private
Limited (material unlisted wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) issued by Ms. Madhu Lakhlan,
Practicing Company Secretaryin form MR-3 is
enclosed as Annexure - 8 to this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A (2) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Secretarial Compliance
Reportissued by Ms. Madhu Lakhlan, Practicing
Company Secretary is enclosed as Annexure -9 to

this Annual Report. The Reports does not contain any
qualification, reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

Reporting of frauds by auditors

During the year under review, neither the statutory
auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported
to the Audit Committee, under Section 143 (12)

of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by its
officers oremployees, the details of which would
need to be mentionedinthe Board's report.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, Cost Auditis not required for the Company
forthe financial year ended March 31,2022,

Significant and material orders passed by the Courts/
Regulators

There are no significant material orders passed by

the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going

concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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6. Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Policy of the Company as adopted by the
Board and the initiatives undertaken by the Company
on CSR activities during the year under review are
setoutin"Annexure -10" of thisreportin the format
prescribedinthe Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. For other details
regarding the CSR Committee, please referto the
Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this
report.The CSR Policy is available on the website

of the Company www.tanla.com/investors.html

Business Responsibility Report (BRR)

The SEBI (Listing Regulations) 2015 mandated the
inclusion of the BRR as part of the Annual Report for the
top 1,000 listed entities based on market capitalization.
In compliance with the Listing Regulations, BRR
disclosureis appended as Annexure - 11to this Report.

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Areportonthe company's ESGinitiativesis annexed as
a separate section and forms part of this Annual Report.

Human Capital

Employees are our most valuable assets and key to
the success of your Company. We are committed
to hiring and retaining the best talent. We always
strive towards collaborative, transparent and
participative organization culture, and rewarding
individual contribution and innovation.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (3)
(m) of Section 134 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are enclosed as Annexure-6 to
this Report

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace.
Pursuant to the provisions of “The Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and
Redressal) Act, 2013" ("POSH Act”) the Company has
framed a Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace and
matters connected therewith orincidental thereto.
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set

up toredress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. Allemployees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
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The Company has always provided a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working in its premises
through various policies and practices. The company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free
from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has been actively involved in ensuring that
the associates are aware of the provisions of the POSH Act and rights thereunder. During the year under review, the details of
complaint received are as under:

a.number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b.number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NA

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NA.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all the Stakeholders of the Company,
viz., customers, investors, banks, regulators, suppliers, partners and other business associates for the support received
from them during the year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of gratitude and
appreciation for all the employees for their commitment and contribution towards achieving the goals of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & CEO

Place: Hyderabad DIN : 00003382

Date: July 25,2022
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Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

SI.No. Particulars TZ Mobile Private Limited  Jengatron Gaming Private Limited

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2022 31.03.2022

"Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture
2 was associated 27.07.2009 2711.2018
oracquired"
"Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by
3 the company on
the year end"

No. - -

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint
Venture

Extent of Holding (in percentage) - -

4 Description of how there is significant influence - -

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not

) Refer notes below Refer notes below
consolidated

"Networth attributable to shareholding as per
6 latest audited - -
Balance Sheet"

7 Profit or Loss forthe year - -
(1) Considered in Consolidation - -
(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation - -

(i) Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations- Not applicable

(i) Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Refer notes below:

(@) TZ Mobile Private Limited has been voluntarily liquidated under the order of National Company Law Tribunal dated March 17,2022.
(b) Duringthe year ended March 31,2022, the Company has disposed its investment in Jengatron Gaming Private Limited.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Chairman & CEO
Place: Hyderabad DIN : 00003382

Date: July 25,2022
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Annexure-2
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. There are no contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are not at arms’ length basis.

2. Contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 which are at arms’ length basis.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis.

SI.No  Particulars Details
(@) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
(©) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any
Not applicable
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’
(f) Date of approval by the Board
©) Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under
(h) first proviso to section

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: Refer Note No. 42 of Notes to Accounts of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Note:
As per the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, none of the
transactions were material in nature and all the transactions were in the ordinary course of business and atarm’s length
pasis.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & CEO

Place: Hyderabad
DIN : 00003382

Date: July 25,2022
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Annexure- 3(i)

The Disclosures pursuant to Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits And
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 are detailed under: For the FY 2021-22:

Particulars Status of compliance

The Board of Directorsin theirreport shall disclose
any material change in the scheme(s) and whether the
scheme(s)is/arein compliance with the regulations.

The schemeisin compliance with SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. Refer to page
No. 74 of 26th Annual Report of the Company.

Further, the following details, inter alia, shall be disclosed on the company's website and a web-link thereto shall be provided
inthe report of Board of Directors.

Relevant disclosuresin terms of the accounting standards "Disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements — Note
prescribed by the Central Government in terms of section 37to Standalone Financials for the year ended March
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) including the 31,2021, page no. 175 of 26th Annual Report of the
'‘Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based Company.

payments'issued in thatregard from time to time. (Disclosure are provided in accordance with

Ind AS102, Share-based Payment)"

Refertopagenos.137and 193 of the 26th
Annual Report for disclosure of Diluted EPS
at standalone and consolidated levels.

Diluted EPS onissue of shares pursuant to all the schemes
covered under the regulations shall be disclosed in
accordance with 'Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per
Share'issued by Central Government or any other relevant
accounting standards asissued from time to time.

Details related to Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

Adescription of each ESOS that existed at any time during the year, including the general terms and conditions of each ESOS,
including - (Scheme Name- Tanla Solutions Limited — Employee Stock Option Plan 2015-16)

September16, 2015
(b) Total number of options approved under ESOS 50,000,000

(c) Vesting requirements — 30% of the Granted Options on completion
of 1year from the date of Grant.

(a) Date of shareholders’approval

— 15% of the Granted Options on completion
of 2 years from the date of Grant.

— 15% of the Granted Options on completion
of 3years from the date of Grant.

— 15% of the Granted Options on completion
of 4years from the date of Grant.

— 25% of the Granted Options on completion
of byears from the date of Grant.

(d) Exercise price or pricing formula Options have been granted at *26.51/- per
option (Grant Price) during the FY 2015-16.

(e) Maximum term of options granted Syears

(f) Source of shares (primary, secondary or combination) Primary

(9) Variationin terms of options Not Applicable

Method used to account for ESOS - Intrinsic or fair value. The Company has calculated employee

compensation cost using the Fair Value.

Where the company opts for expensing of the options using the Not Applicable
intrinsic value of the options, the difference between the employee

compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation

costthat shall have beenrecognizedif it had used the fair value

of the options shall be disclosed. The impact of this difference

on profits and on EPS of the company shall also be disclosed.
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Particulars Status of compliance

Option movement during the year (for each ESOS):

Particulars Details

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period 414,750

Number of options granted during the year Nil

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year Nil

Number of options vested during the year Nil

Number of options exercised during the year 414,750

Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 414,750

Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme 21,0995,022.50/-

isimplemented directly by the company

Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received

Not Applicable

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

Nil

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year

Nil

Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted-average
fairvalues of options shall be disclosed separately for
options whose exercise price either equals or exceeds
orislessthanthe market price of the stock.

Weighted average Exercise price -326.51

Employee wise details (name of employee, designation, number of options granted during the year, exercise price) of options
grantedto -

(a) senior managerial personnel as defined under Regulation NIL
16(d) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b) any other employee who receives a grantinany one year of option NIL
amounting to 5% or more of option granted during that year; and

(c)identified employees who were granted option,
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

NIL

A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of options including

the followinginformation:

(a) ). the weighted-average values of share price,

Not Applicable

ii). exercise price,

Not Applicable

iii). expected volatility,
iv). expected option life,
v). expected dividends,

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

).
vi). the risk-free interest rate and

Not Applicable

vii). any otherinputs to the model;

Not Applicable

(b) the method used and the assumptions made to
incorporate the effects of expected early exercise;

NIL

(c) how expected volatility was determined, including
an explanation of the extent to which expected
volatility was based on historical volatility; and

The scheme was drawn up in accordance
with the then guidelines of SEBlas such
thisassumption was not applicable.

(d) Whether and how any other features of the option
grantwere incorporated into the measurement
of fair value, such as a market condition.

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

The scheme was drawn up in accordance
with the then guidelines of SEBI as such
thisassumption was not applicable.
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Particulars Status of compliance

Details related to Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

A description of each ESOS that existed at any time during the year, including the general terms and conditions of each ESOS,
including - (Scheme Name- Tanla Platforms Limited - Restricted Stock Unit Plan 2021)

(a) Date of shareholders’approval

June 19,2021

(b) Total number of options approved under ESOS

30,00,000

(c) Vesting requirements

RSUs granted under this Plan would Vest not earlier

than minimum Vesting Period of 1(One) year or such
other period as may be prescribed under applicable
laws and not later than maximum Vesting Period of 7
(Seven) years from the date of Grant of such RSUs.

(d) Exercise price or pricing formula

The Exercise Price shall be the face value of
the Share as on date of Exercise of RSUs.

(e) Maximum term of options granted

4 years for the options granted until date,
however the maximum period as per the
scheme can be upto 7 (Seven) years

(f) Source of shares (primary, secondary or combination)

Primary

(9) Variationin terms of options

Not Applicable

Method used to account for ESOS - Intrinsic or fair value.

The Company has calculated employee
compensation cost using the Fair Value.

Where the company opts for expensing of the options using the
intrinsic value of the options, the difference between the employee
compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation
cost that shall have beenrecognizedifit had used the fair value

of the options shall be disclosed. The impact of this difference

on profitsand on EPS of the company shall also be disclosed.

Not Applicable

Option movement during the year (for each ESOS):

Particulars

Details

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period

Not Applicable

Number of options granted during the year 4,67500
Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year* 172,500
Number of options vested during the year Nil
Number of options exercised during the year

Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options Nil
Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme Nil

isimplemented directly by the company

Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received

Not Applicable

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

295,000

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year

Nil

Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted-average
fair values of options shall be disclosed separately for
options whose exercise price either equals or exceeds
orislessthanthe market price of the stock.

Not Applicable

Employee wise details (name of employee, designation, number of options granted during the year, exercise price) of options

grantedto -

(a) senior managerial personnel as defined under Regulation
16(d) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Designation Number of Op-
9 tions granted
Aravind
Viswana- CFO 1,560,000 R1/-
than
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Particulars Status of compliance

L
Harish CTO 117500 31-
Arora
Vice Presi-
SoniaKaul  dent-Sales, 5,000 21/
Karix
. Senior Vice
MinirAshok o csident- 5,000 31)-
Gandhi )
Sales, Karix
. Senior Vice
Sidhant President- 5,000 31/
Sachdev )
Sales, Karix
cranara SIS
Sekhar 5,000 /-
; . Product,
Konetisetti
Tanla

(b) any other employee who receives a grantinany one year of option NIL
amounting to 5% or more of option granted during that year; and

(c)identified employees who were granted option, NIL
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the

issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and

conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of options including
the following information:

(b)i). the weighted-average values of share price, 890-1,802

ii). exercise price, &l

iii). expected volatility, 49.45%

iv). expected option life, 2-byears

v). expected dividends, 013%

vi). therisk-free interestrate and 4.49%-5.36%

vii). any other inputs to the model; NA
(b) the method used and the assumptions made to NIL
incorporate the effects of expected early exercise;
(c) how expected volatility was determined, including The scheme was drawn up in accordance
an explanation of the extent to which expected with the then guidelines of SEBl as such
volatility was based on historical volatility; and thisassumption was not applicable.
(d) Whether and how any other features of the option The scheme was drawn up inaccordance
grantwere incorporated into the measurement with the then guidelines of SEBlas such
of fair value, such as a market condition. thisassumption was not applicable.

*Harish Arora has resigned on May 27, 2022.
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Details related to ESPS

(i) The following are the details on (Tanla Employee Stock Purchase Scheme 2018) ESPS 2018:
(a) Date of shareholders' approval: September 17,2018
(b) Number of Shares approved under ESPS 2018: 80,00,000
(c) Number of shares issued: 74,76,125 (till date)
(d) The price at which such shares are issued: Re. 1/-
(e) Lock-in period: 1year from the date of allotment

(i) The following details regarding allotment made under each ESPS during the year:

Particulars Details

The details of the number of shares issued under ESPS Nil

The price at which such shares areissued Not Applicable

Employee-wise details of the sharesissued to;

Not Applicable
(i) “senior management” as defined under regulation 16(1)(d) of

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(i) any other employee whoisissued shares inany one year Not Applicable

amounting to 5% or more sharesissued during that year;

(iii) identified employees who were issued shares during any one year equal to

or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the company at the time of issuance;, Not Applicable

Consideration received against the issuance of shares, if scheme is )
implemented directly by the company Not Applicable

Loanrepaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & CEO

Place:Hyderabad DIN : 00003382

Date: July 25,2022
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Annexure- 3(ii)

To,

The Board of Directors

Tanla Platforms Limited (Formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)
Tanla Technology Centre,

Hitech City Road, Madhapur,

Hyderabad, Telangana 500081.

Secretarial Auditor’'s Certificate for requirements of Regulation 13 of the Securities and Exchange board of
India (Share Based Employee benefits) Regulation, 2014 of Tanla Platforms Limited (‘the Company’)

We have been requested by the Company having its registered office at Tanla Technology Centre, Hitech City Road,
Madhapur, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500081, India to issue a certificate pursuant to requirements as per regulation 13 of
Securities and exchange board of India(Share based employee benefits) Regulation 2014(as amended).

Pursuant to the above, and after examining all the requirements and the information and explanation provided to us by the
management, we do hereby certify that the Employee Stock option Schemes of the company are in accordance with the
conditions laid down in the general meeting resolutions which is as per the requirements of Securities Exchange board of
India(Employee stock option scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999, and SEBI(Share based
employee benefits) Regulation 2014 (as amended).

The certificate is addressed and provided to the management of the Company solely for the purpose to enable comply
with requirement of Regulation 13 of Securities and exchange board of India (Share based employee benefits) Regulation
2014. 1t should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Madhu Lakhlan & Company shall not be liable to the
Company or to any other concerned for the claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment.

Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this certificate is shown orinto whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Madhu Lakhlan & Company

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 25, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - AO35709D000681420
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Corporate Governance Report

1. Our Philosophy on Corporate
Governance

Corporate Governance reflects the culture, values,
and policies of Tanla. Realizing the criticality of

sound corporate governance practices to enhance
shareholder and stakeholder trust, Tanla observes the
highestlevel of ethics and transparency in all its affairs.

To meet our obligation towards our shareholders and
other stakeholders, Tanla has a corporate culture of
conscience and consciousness, integrity, transparency
and accountability for efficient and ethical conduct

of business. Apart from complying with the statutory
requirements, effective systems and practices towards
improving transparency; internal controls and promotion
of ethics at workplace have beeninstitutionalized.

At Tanla, we firmly believe that corporate governance
standards should go beyond the law and must satisfy
the spirit of law and not just the letter of the law.

Tanla's Board believes that arobust framework

and flawlessimplementation of highest standards

of Corporate Governance provides a sustainable
competitive advantage to a company. Together, the
Management and the Board ensure that Tanlaremains a
Company of uncompromised integrity and excellence.

As part of our Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) initiative, Tanla targets to become
carbon neutral by 2025. We see good corporate
governance as an essential pillar of our ESG
strategy, ensuring that the Company is managedin
the long-terminterests of its key stakeholders.

The Company isin compliance with the requirements
stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule Vand clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation

(2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations”) asamended from time to time, as
applicable, withregard to Corporate Governance.
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2.Board of Directors

Role of Board of Directors

The board’'s key purposeisto ensure the
company'’s prosperity by collectively directing
the company’s affairs, while meeting the
appropriate interests of its shareholders

and other relevant stakeholders

Providing entrepreneurial AAA

leadership AAA

Setting strategy y ° Role of Board
O of Directors

Ensuring the human and financial
resources are available to achieve
objectives

The Board directors act as stewards of the

company that govern the present times and provide
guidance and direction for the future. The Role

of Tanla's Board is summarised as under:

Reviewing management
performance

Setting the company’s
values and standards

Ensuring that obligations to
shareholders & other stakeholders
are understood and met

Composition of Board of Directors

The Board has an optimum combination of
Executive, Non-Executive, Independent and
Woman Director. The composition of the Board
of Directorsisinaccordance with Regulation

17 of the SEBI (Listing Regulations) 2015.

Ason March 31,2022, our Board comprised of 8
members, consisting of one Executive Chairman
(oromoter) & CEO, one Executive Director, two
Non-Executive Directors and four Non-Executive
Independent Directors. Independent Directors
constitute 50% of the Board's strength as per the
requirements of the Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013.

The profiles of Board members encompassing
details of nationality, age, date of (re)appointment,
tenure on Board, term ending date, shareholding,
Board membershipsin listed companies, committee
details as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations
and areas of expertise are givenin the Governance
chapter of the Annual Report. There are no inter-se
relationships between our Board members.
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Independent Directors Board Meetings

Independent Directors are non-executive directors 8 (Eight) Board meetings were held during the

as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing financial year 2021-22 and the gap between two
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with meetings did not exceed 120 days. The said Board
rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of meetings were held on the following dates:

SEBI Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they

are not aware of any circumstance or situation which April 07,2021; May 19, 2021; July 10, 2021; July
exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair 21,2021; August 30, 2021; September 20,
orimpact their ability to discharge their duties. Based 2021; October 21,2021; January 21, 2022.

onthe declarations received from the Independent
Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned
under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and that they are independent of the management.

Attendance of directors during year 2021-22:

There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions
with Non-Executive Independent Directors that could
materially influence theirjudgment except sitting fees
paid towards attending Board and Committee Meetings.

Number of Board meetings Number of Attended
entitled to attend during Board meetings % of the last
Name of the Director the FY 2021-22 attended Attendance AGM
Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy 8 8 100 Yes
Dr.A.G.Ravindranath Reddy 8 8 100 Yes
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor 8 8 100 Yes
Mr. Rohit Bhasin 8 8 100 Yes
Mr. Sanjay Baweja 8 8 100 Yes
Ms. Amrita Gangotra 8 8 100 Yes
Mr. Rahul Khanna 8 8 100 Yes
Mr. Deepak Goyal 8 8 100 Yes
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Separate meeting of the Independent Directors 3.Key .Board qua"fications- skills,
expertise and attributes of the Board of

In compliance with Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Directors of the Company
Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act,

2013, there was a separate meeting of Independent The Board has identified the following skills/
Directors of the Company held on March 02,2022, expertise/ competencies fundamental while
without the presence of the Non-Independent Directors nominating candidates to serve on the Board.

and members of the Management inter alia, to discuss:

— Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board of Directors as awhole;

— Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman
of the Company, taking into account the views of
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors;

Industry
knowledge

— Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines

02

of flow of information between the Management —Board Strateqic
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to Technical skills/ | Skill i enpertisgand
effectively and reasonably performits duties. experience // zatrlx leadership
mﬂ“ﬂ} e .F*
/ %j@j

Governance )
expertise

Industry Knowledge Technical Skills/ Experience

In-depth knowledge of the CPAAS industry Sound knowledge of accounting, finance, banking,
resultinginachieving the objectives of the tax laws etc to be able to obtain, analyse, interpret
organisation while operating effectively, and use information effectively to develop plans
responsibly, legally and sustainably. and take appropriate decisions. Interpretation

of financial statementsand accountsin order

StrategicE ti d Leadershi
rategic Expertise and Leadership to assessthe financial health and risks.

Strategic thinking, vision and value creation enables Governance Expertise

to proposeideas, options and plans that take

advantage of available opportunities while reflecting Understanding to deliver effective leadership, build
abroad and future-oriented perspective. good stakeholder relations and develop a strategically

aligned and values-based organisational culture.
The Directors of the Company are from diverse

pbackgrounds and possess special skills with regard
totheindustries/fields from where they come.
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The names and categories of Directors on the Board of the Company and also the number of Directorship and
Committee membership held by them in all the Companies as on as on March 31,2022 as follows:

No. of Memberships/
Directorships | Chairmanships Nationality

Directorshipsin Category of heldin allthe | held in Age

Name ofthe | |;sted Companies Directorship

Director Companies Committees Tenure on the Board
Member | Chairman

Indian
Mr. D. Uday 1.Tanla Platforms Limited - | Chairman &
55 years
Kumar Reddy Chairman and CEO CEO 12 2 0 v
22 years
1.Tanla Platforms Limited -
DrA G Non Executive Director Non-Execu- Indian
Re;viﬁd.ranath tive Non-In-
2.Ramky Infrastructure dependent | © 3 O 65 years
Reddy Limited - Non Executive Director 79 years
Director
1.Tanla Platforms Limited - | Non-Execu- Indian
i Non-Executive Director i “In-
Mr. Sanjay tive Non-In 5 3 60 years
Kapoor 2.0n Mobile Global Limit- | dépendent oe
ed - Independent Director | Director oyears
A . Non-Execu- Indian
Mr. Rohit 1.Tanla Platforms Limited - tive Indepen-
Bhasin Independent Director 'ep 6 5 2 62 years
dent Director
2.5years
1.Tanla Platforms Limited - Indian
Mr. Sanjay Independent Director Non-Execu-
. ) o tive Indepen- | ¢ 2 2 62 years
Baweja 2.0n Mobile Global Limit- -
- X dent Director 2 5 vears
ed - Managing Director oY
4 . Non-Execu- Indian
Ms. Amrita 1.Tanla Platforms Limited - tive Indepen-
Gangotra Independent Director ep 3 1 0 57years
dent Director
2.6 years
_ _ United Kingdom
Mr. Rahul 1.Tanla Platforms Limited - Non Execu 48
Khanna Independent Director tive Indepen- | 3 2 0 years
P dent Director 1.6 years
Indian
Mr. Deepak 1Tanla Platforms Limited - | Executive 51vears
Satyaprakash Executive Director Director 2 0 0 /
Goyal 1.6 years
Notes:
— None of the Directorismember of more
— Themembership of the Director in committees does than ten Committees or Chairman of more
notinclude the committeesin Foreign Companies, than five Committees across all Public
Companies Registered under Section 8 of the Companiesinwhich they are Directors.

Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited Companies. _ None of the Directors on the Board holds

— Forthe purposes of determination of committee directorshipsinmore than ten Public Companies.
details as per Regulation 26 of Listing None of the Independent Directors serves as
Regulations, membership and chairpersonship anindependent director on more than seven
of only the audit committee and the stakeholders listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding
relationship committee are considered. Committee positions in other Public Companies as

on March 31,2022 have been made by the Directors.
None of the Directors are related to each other.
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5. Code of Conduct

In compliance with Regulation 17 of the Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has framed and adopted Code of Conduct
forall Directors and Senior Management personnel
and this Code is posted on the website of the
Company https://www.tanla.com/investors.html

The Codeiscirculated to all Board members
and Senior Management Personnelandits
complianceis affirmed by them annually.

Inrespect of financial year 2020-21, all Board members
and Senior Management personnel of the Company
have affirmed the compliance with the code of
conductas applicable to them and a declaration to

this effect signed by the Chairman and Managing
Directoris published in this Annual Report.

6. Performance Evaluation of Board and
Committees of the Board

An annual performance evaluation was conducted for all
the Board members, for the Board and its Committees.
The Board evaluation framework was designed after
takinginto consideration the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Regulations),
2015 and guidance notesissued by the SEBI. The

Board also considered the inputs and suggestions

of the Independent Directors for determining the
criteria for carrying out the entire evaluation process.

A structured questionnaire for evaluating the
performance of the Chairman and Managing Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors
was prepared after taking into considerations

the parameters as per the SEBI Regulations.
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Evaluation of the Board was based on the criteria
suchasrole and composition of the Board, Board
communication, strategy and stakeholders value etc.

Evaluation of the Committees of the Board was
pased onthe criteria such asindependence of
each committee, functioning of the committees,
frequency of the meetings, effectiveness of its
advice/recommendations to the Board etc.

The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board.
The performance evaluation of the Chairman
and the Non Independent Directors was

carried out by the Independent Directors.

As an outcome of the above exercise, the Board
expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation process.

7. Board Committees

1. Audit Committee

Audit Committee is constituted in line with the provisions
of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31,2022,
the Committee comprised of the following directors:

1. Mr.Sanjay Baweja, Chairman

2. Mr.Rohit Bhasin, Member

3. Mr.RahulKhanna, Member

4. Mr.Uday Kumar Reddy, Member

The Company Secretary actsasthe
secretary to the audit committee.
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Brief description of terms of reference

— Reviewscope, recommend appointmentand
remuneration, evaluate performance and
effectiveness of the auditors and audit process.

— Review of the quarterly and half yearly
financial results with the management
and the statutory auditors;

— Examineinternal auditreportto focus on
significant findings, discuss on follow up
actions, suggestinternal investigations if
required, commentoninternal controls and
recommend improvisation wherever required

— Summarize the findings of audit reports, understand
gaps and discuss the proposed mitigation plans

— Internalaudit reports relating to adequacy
of internal control over financial reporting
and the company-level control systems.

— Carrying outany other function as may be
referred to the Committee by the Board.

— Authority toreview /investigate into any matter
covered by Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and matters specified in Part C of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations.

Meetings &Attendance

During the year under review, 8 (Eight) meetings of the
Committee were held on April 07 2021, May 18, 2021,
May 19, 2021, July 21,2021, August 30, 2021, October
20,2021, January 05,2022 and January 21,2022.

The attendance at the meeting is given below:

Financial Review:

— Oversight of the Company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statementis correct, sufficientand credible;

— Review with the management and statutory auditors
of the annualand quarterly financial statements
pbefore submission to the Board for approval;

— Approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions with related parties;

— Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

— Review of valuation of undertakings or assets
of the company whereveritisnecessary;,

— Reviewthe functioning of the
whistle blower mechanism;

— Reviewand monitor the end use of funds raised
through public offers and related matters;

The Audit Committee charter containing exhaustive
terms of reference is available on our website
https://www.tanla.com/investors.html.

Committee invites such of the executives asit considers
appropriate, representatives of the statutory auditors
andinternal auditors, to be present atits meetings.

During the year under review all recommendations
made by the Audit Committee were
accepted by the Board of Directors.

Number of Number of

Name of the Member Designationin Category of Directorship meetings entitled meetings

Committee to attend attended
Mr. Sanjay Baweja Chairman Independent Director 8 8
Mr. Rohit Bhasin Member Independent Director 8 8
Mr. RahulKhanna Member Independent Director 8 8
Mr.Uday Kumar Reddy Member Wholetime Director 8 8
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2.Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committeeis
constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation
19 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of
the Act. Ason March 31,2022, the Committee
comprised of the following directors:

1. Mr.Rohit Bhasin, Chairman

2. Ms. Amrita Gangotra, Member

3. Mr.RahulKhanna, Member'

4. Mr.Sanjay Kapoor, Member?

5. Dr.A.G.Ravindranath Reddy, Member?

Brief description of terms of reference

— Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, attributes and independence of a
directorand recommend to the board of directors a
policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors,
key managerial personneland other employees;

— Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
ofindependent directors and the Board of Directors;

— Conductanannual evaluation of the overall
effectiveness of the Board, the Committees of the
Board and the performance of each Director;

The attendance at the meetingis given below:

Name of the Member

Designationin

— Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

— lIdentify and recommend to the Board, persons
who are qualified to become Directors and who
may be appointed in Senior Managementincluding
Key Managerial Personnel, in accordance with the
criteria laid down and their removal thereof whether
to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors;

— Recommendtothe Board, allremuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management.

The charter of the Committee with detailed
terms of reference and the policy for determining
the remuneration of the Directors, KMP's and
other employeesis available on our website
https://www.tanla.com/investors.html

Meetings & Attendance

During the year under review, 6 (six) meetings
of the Committee were held on April 06, 2021,
May 17,2021, July 20, 2021, August 25, 2021,
August 30, 2021and January 13, 2022.

Committee
Mr. Rohit Bhasin Chairman
Ms. Amrita Gangotra Member
Mr.Rahul Khanna' Member
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor? Member
Dr. A.G. Ravindranath Reddy? Member

"Appointed as member of the Committee w.e f. Jan1,2022
?Ceasedtobeamemberof the Committee w.e.f. Dec 31,2021
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Number of

Category of Directorship | Number of meetings

meetings held attended
Independent Director 6 6
Independent Director 6 6
Independent Director 1 1
Non-Executive Director 5 5
Non-Executive Director 5 5
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Remuneration paid to the Directors for the FY 2021-22

The details of remuneration paid to Mr. D. Uday Kumar
Reddy the Chairman & CEO for the financial
year ended March 31,2022 is as follows:

Contributions
Salaryand | toprovident

allowances |and other funds
(inR) (inX)

Mr.D. Uday Kumar Reddy, 2,58,05,040  13,00,860/-
Chairman &CEO

The details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive
Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2022:

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Non-Executive Director was paid
consultancy fees of R416 lakhs during the financial
year 2020-21through his consulting firm Z Axis
Management Consultants & Strategic Advisors LLP.

Details of shares and convertible instruments held by

Non-Executive directors, as per Schedule V Para C
clause 2(f) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Number of Shares held

ason March 31,2022

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor - 155000
Non-Executive Director o
Dr.AG Ravindranath Reddy - 3000
Non-Executive Director '

Ms. Amrita Gangotra - 11493
Independent Director '

Mr. Rohit Bhasin - 0
Independent Director

Mr. Sanjay Baweja - 170000
Independent Director

Mr.RahulKhanna - 60000

Independent Director
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The details of sitting fees to Non-Executive Directors
&Independent Directors for the financial year ended
March 31,2022

Sitting Fees
paid (inX)

Dr.AG Ravindranath Reddy - 20,00,000
Non-Executive Director
Ms. Amrita Gangotra - 20,00,000
Independent Director
Mr. Rohit Bhasin - 25,00,000
Independent Director
Mr. Sanjay Baweja - 19,00,000
Independent Director
Mr. Rahul Khanna - 23,00,000

Independent Director

There are no other Non-Executive Directors having
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

Apartfrom the sitting fees, there were no other

pecuniary relationships or transactions of the
Independent Directors vis-a-vis the Company.
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3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee is
constitutedin line with the Regulation 20 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and provisions
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Brief description of terms of reference

The Committee is empowered to handling of
stakeholders' queries and grievances.

The Committee primarily focuses on:

— Considerandresolve the investor complaints
pertaining to share transfer, non-receipt of
Annual Reports, dividend payments, issue of
duplicate share certificates, transmission of
shares and other miscellaneous complaints.

— Evaluate performance and service standards of the
Registrarand Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

The charter of the Committeeis available onthe
website of the Company www.tanla.com

Meetings, Compositions &Attendance

During the year under review, 3 (three) meetings
of the Committee were held on May 13, 2021,
July19,2021and January 19, 2022.

Name, designation of the Compliance Officer

Ms. Seshanuradha Chava, General Counsel acts
as the Compliance Officer of the Company.

The composition of the Committee during the year as well as particulars of the attendance at the meeting is given below:

Number of Number of
meetings entitled | meetings

Designationin
Committee to attend attended

Name of the Member Category of Directorship

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor Chairperson Non-Executive Director 3 3
Dr.A.G.Ravindranath Reddy Member Non-Executive Director 3 3
Ms. Amrita Gangotra Member Independent Director 3 3
Mr. Rahul Khanna Member Independent Director 3 3

Shareholders Complaints and Redressed

During the FY 2021-22, no queries/requests/complaints were received from the shareholders under
the following heads and the same were duly resolved as per the summary given below:

Type of Complaint Received Resolved Pending
Non-Receipt of Annual Reports 0] 0 0
Non-Receipt of Dividend Warrants 0 0 0
Others 0 0 0
Total (0] (0] (0]

In order to facilitate faster redressal of investors Scores

grievances the Company has created an
exclusive email-address “investorhelp@tanla.
com”. Investors and shareholders may lodge
their query/complaints addressed to this email
idwhich are attended to immediately.
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Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has initiated
aplatform forredressing the investor grievances
through SCORES, a web-based complaints redressal
system. The Company is following this system. The
Company received Nil complaints on SCORES.
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4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
is constituted in line with the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Brief description of terms of reference

— Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR

The CSR Policy and the charter of the Committee
are available on the website of the Company
https://www.tanla.com/investors.html

Meetings, Compositions & Attendance

During the year under review, 2 (Two) meetings of the
Committee was held on May 17,2021 & December 2, 2021.

Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by
the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Act.

— Recommend the amount of expenditure
tobeincurred onthe activities as
mentionedinthe CSR Policy.

— Monitorthe CSR Policy.

The composition of the Committee during the year as well as particulars of the attendance at the meeting is given
below:

Number of Number of

Name of the Member Designationin Category of Directorship | meetingsentitled | meetings

Committee to attend attended
Mr. Rahul Khanna Chairman Independent Director 2 2
Dr.A. G.Ravindranath Reddy Member Non-Executive Director 2 2
Mr. Rohit Bhasin Member Independent Director 2 2
Mr. D Uday Kumar Reddy Member Wholetime Director 2 2

5. Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a
Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management plan for the Company.

risks), information, cyber security risks, internal
financial controls, market risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, commercial risk, fraud risk and IT related risk or
any otherriskas may be determined by the

The Risk Management Policy and the charter of Committee.
the Committee are available on the website of the

b. Measuresforrisk mitigation including systems
Company https://www.tanla.com/investors.html 9 gsy

and processes forinternal control of identified risks.

Brief description of terms of reference c. Business continuity plan.
The Committeeisresponsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management plan

and ensuring its effectiveness.

2. Toensurethat appropriate methodology, processes
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;

3. Tomonitor and oversee implementation of
the risk management policy, including evaluating
the adequacy of risk management systems;

1. Toformulate a detailed risk management
policy which shallinclude:

a. Aframeworkforidentification of
internal and external risks specifically
faced by the listed entity, in particular
including financial, operational, sectoral,
sustainability (particularly, ESG related

4. Toperiodically review the risk management policy,
atleastonceintwo years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;
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o

To Keep The Board Of Directors Informed About
The Nature And Content Of Its Discussions,
Recommendations And Actions To Be Taken;

The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall

be subject to review by the Risk Management
Committee. The Committee shall periodically assess
risks to the effective execution of business strategy
and review key leading indicatorsin thisregard.

The Committee shallannually review and
approve the Enterprise Risk Management
Framework of the Company.

The Committee shall periodically review the
risk management processes and practices of
the Company and ensure that the Company
istaking the appropriate measures to achieve
prudentbalance betweenriskand rewardin
pboth ongoing and new business activities.

. The Committee shall review the Company’s

compliance with legal and regulatory provisions,
its Constitution and the rules established by the
Board, if any, and any significant breaches thereof;

10. The Committee shall evaluate significant

risk exposures of the Company and assess
management’s actions to mitigate the exposures
inatimely manner (including one-offinitiatives,
and ongoing activities such as business continuity
planning and disaster recovery planning & testing).

1. The Committee will coordinate its activities
with the Audit Committee in instances where
thereis any overlap with audit activities (e.g.
internal or external auditissue relating to
risk management policy or practice).

12. The Committee shall make regularreports
to the Board, including with respect to risk
management and minimization procedures.

13. The Committee shall review and reassess
the adequacy of this Charter periodically and
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. The Board may review the performance
of the Risk Management Committee periodically.

14. The Committee shall have access to anyinternal
information necessary to fulfill its oversight role.

15. The Committee shall also have authority to
obtain advice and assistance frominternal or
externallegal, accounting or other advisors.

The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its
activities with other committees, ininstances where
thereis any overlap with activities of such committees, as
per the framework laid down by the board of directors.

Meetings, Compositions &Attendance
During the year under review, 2 (two)

meetings of the Committee was held on
July19,2021and January 12,2022

The composition of the Committee during the year as well as particulars of the attendance at the meeting is given below:

Name of the Member S
Dr.A.G.Ravindranath Reddy Chairperson
Ms. Amrita Gangotra Member
Mr. Sanjay Baweja Member
Mr. Deepak Goyal Member

8. Familiarization Programme

As ageneral practice of the Company, in every

Board meeting, comprehensive presentations are
made by each head of the department on various
aspects such as business model, strategies and
policies, long term and short term plans, competition,
risksidentification and mitigation strategies,

fund requirements, regulatory changes etc.
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Designationin

Number of Number of
Category of Directorship meetings entitled | meetings

to attend attended
Non-Executive Director 2 2
Independent Director 2 2
Independent Director 2 2
Wholetime Director 2 1

This activity helps the Independent Director as well the Board
to have an in-depth understanding and keep them updated
onregular basis about the every aspect of the Company.

The details of the familiarization programme are also

available on the website of the Company at
www.tanla.com/investors.html
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9. General Body Meetings

Venue, time and number of special resolutions passed in the previous 3 (three) AGMs.

Location Day, Date & Time Special resolutions passed
2020-21 25th Video Conferencing Friday, 1. Toapprove the remuneration payable
("VC") / Other Audio-Visual | September 24,2021 to Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Non-Executive
Means ("OAVM") /3:30PM Director through his consulting firm.
2019-20 24th Video Conferencing Friday, 1. Changeinthe name of the Company.
("VC")/ Other Audio-Visual | September 25, 2. Re-designation of Mr. Uday Kumar
Means ("OAVM") 2020/03:00PM Reddy (DIN: 00003382) as Executive
Chairman &CEO.

3. Toappoint Mr. Rahul Khanna
(DIN:07997083) as an Independent
Director of the Company.

4. Toappoint Mr. Deepak Satyaprakash
Goyal (DIN:01755263) as an Executive
Director of the Company.

5. Toapprove the remuneration payable
to Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Non-Executive
Director through his consulting firm.

2018-19 23rd Novotel Hyderabad Monday, 1. Tore-appoint Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Convention Centre, September 30, (DIN:00003382) as Chairman &
Novotel & HICC Complex, 2019 /11:30 AM Managing Director of the Company and
Near Hitech City, to fix his remuneration.
Madhapur, Hyderabad - 2. Toapprove the remuneration payable
500081. to Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Non-Executive

Director, under Sec 188(f) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 15
(Meeting of Board and its powers) rules,
2014 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR),
2015.

3. Issue of Equity Shares on a preferential
basis to Mr.Kishore Annapureddy and
Ms. Nishitha Nagireddy.
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Postal Ballot

During the year,1(One) Postal Ballot activities was conducted, and results were declared on June 19, 2021as under:

i. Approval of Tanla Platforms Limited - Restricted Stock Unit Plan 2021

Resolution Required Special

Voting Results Passed with requisite majority. The details of the voting results are available on the website of
the company www.tanla.com

Scrutinizer Ms. Madhu Lakhlan, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.23044), Madhu Lakhlan & Company,
Hyderabad was appointed as the scrutinizer (the “Scrutinizer”) for conducting the postal ballot
processinafairandtransparent manner

Procedure followed for | Postal Ballot was conducted in compliance with Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation
Postal Ballot and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per the procedure laid downin Sections
108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 20 and 22 of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014.
Onaccount of threat posed by COVID-19 and in terms of the MCA Circulars the Company had
sent Postal Ballot Notice in electronic form only and hard copy of the Notice along with postal
pallot forms and pre-paid business envelope were not sent to the shareholders.
Theresults are displayed on the Company’s website www.tanla.com, besides being
communicated to the stock exchanges, depository and registrar and share transfer agent.

ii. Approval of Grant of Restricted Stock Units Under ‘Tanla Platforms Limited- Restricted Stock Unit Plan 2021 to the Eligible
Employees of the Subsidiary(ies) of the Company

Resolution Required Special

Voting Results Passed with requisite majority. The details of the voting results are available on the website of
the company www.tanla.com

Scrutinizer Ms. Madhu Lakhlan, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 23044), Madhu Lakhlan & Company,
Hyderabad was appointed as the scrutinizer (the "Scrutinizer”) for conducting the postal ballot
processinafairand transparent manner

Procedure followed for | Postal Ballot was conducted in compliance with Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation
Postal Ballot and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per the procedure laid down in Sections
108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 20 and 22 of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014.
Onaccount of threat posed by COVID-19 and in terms of the MCA Circulars the Company had
sent Postal Ballot Notice in electronic form only and hard copy of the Notice along with postal
pallot forms and pre-paid business envelope were not sent to the shareholders.
Theresults are displayed on the Company's website www.tanla.com, besides being
communicated to the stock exchanges, depository and registrar and share transfer agent.

Special Resolutions proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot: At present no postal ballots is proposed to be held.
The details of the previous postal ballots are available on the website www.tanla.com
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10. Disclosures Related Party Transactions

CEO&CFO Certification There are no materially significant related party
transactionsi.e. transactions material in nature, with
its promoters, the Directors or the Management,
their subsidiaries or relatives, etc., having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
The policy on Related Party Transaction can be
accessed atwww.tanla.com/investors.html

Interms of requirements of clause 17(8) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) have furnished certificate to the Board in
the prescribed format for the year ended 31st
March 2022, which isannexed to this report.

Details of non-compliance with regard to Capital Markets during the last three years

There have been no instances of non-compliances by the Company and no penalties and / or strictures have been imposed
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years,
exceptas mentioned below:

Details of action taken

Action Details of non-compliances E.G.fines, warning letter, Observations / remarks of the
take by debarment, etc. company
NSE Non-compliance of Reg 108 of The Company had received The Company had approached NSE

(FY 2019-20)

NSE
(FY 2019-20)

SEBI (ICDR)Regulations 2009
read along with SEBI Circular no.
CIR/CFD/DIL/57/2017 dt June

15, 2017 pertaining to delay in

approaching the Exchange for
listing of Equity shares within 20
days from the date of allotment.

Non-compliance/Delayed

compliance with Reg17(1) and
18(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015w.rt Corporate Governance

requirements.

aletter from NSE for non-
compliance under Reg108
of SEBI(ICDR) imposing a
fine 0f R22,79,245/.

The Company had paid the
fine on Sep 26, 2019.

The Company had received
aletter from NSE for non-
compliance under Reg17(1)
and18(1) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 imposing
afine of *3,64,000/-

for waiver of the fees as the non-
compliance was due to technical
glitcheson NEAPS portal.

NSE had considered the requestand
waived the fine by refunding the fine
paid by the Company.

The Company had approached NSE
forwaiver of the fees considering the
factsof the case.

NSE had considered the request
and accepted waiver of the fine for
Reg 18 amounting to R64,000/-.

However, Company had paid the fine
of *3,00,000/-for non compliance/
delayed compliance of Reg17.

BSE Non-compliance under Reg

(FY2020-21) | 169(4) of SEBI (ICDR)Regulations
2018 pertaining to allotment of
31,42,929 shares to an allottee for
which consideration has been
received from other allottee's
pbankaccount

Not Applicable Onaccount of the threat posed

by COVID 19 the Company faced
difficulty in complying with the said
regulation. However, the Company
had voluntarily approached SEBI

for condoning the matterandon
August 24,2020 had received

the condonation notice from SEBI
wherein SEBI had condoned the non-

compliance.
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Compliance with Accounting Standards

Inthe preparation of the financial statements, the
Company has followed the Accounting Standards
notified pursuant the Section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)

and applicable Accounting Standards, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Significant Accounting
Policies which are consistently applied have been
setoutinthe Notes to the financial statements.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Board of Directors have laid-down a "Code of
Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating,
Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders” and
“Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” (together
referred as Codes) for Prevention of Insider Trading
with a view to regulate trading as per SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended
fromtime totime. These code’s are applicable to all

the Board members and the senior management
personnel and such other designated employees who
could have access to the unpublished price sensitive
information of the Company. This Code is posted onthe
website of the Company www.tanla.com.The employees
covered under this code are informed about closure

of trading window as required under the Code's.

Disclosure on Risk Management

The Risk Management Committee assesses therisk
and suggest a mitigation process. A detailed note on the
risk identification and mitigationisincluded in the Risk
Management Report annexedin the Annual Report.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

In line with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013
and of Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy has been
formulated for Directors and employeesto enable
report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual

or suspected fraud or violation of Company's

Code of Conduct etc. The said Policy provides for
adequate safeguard against victimization of directors/
employeeswho avail of such mechanism and provides
accessto the Chairman of Audit Committee. Itis
affirmed that no person has been denied access

to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy
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has been placed on website of the Company and
web link thereto is www.tanla.com/investors.html

During the year, no Whistle Blower complaints were
received.

Dividend Distribution Policy

In line with requirement of Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company has adopted the Dividend
Distribution Policy to determine the distribution of
dividendsinaccordance with the provisions of applicable
laws. The policy was adopted effective October 31,2020.

The Policy has been placed on website of the Company
and web link thereto is www.tanla.com/investors.html

Pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Directors

There were no pecuniary transactions with any
of the Non-Executive Directors except payment
of consultancy fees and sitting fees.

The Company is compliant with the provisions
of applicable laws and the SEBI(LODR)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.

The Board of Directors periodically review the
compliance of all the applicable laws. The Company

has complied with all the mandatory requirements

of the Code of Corporate Governance as specified

in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.
A certificate affirming the compliances from Practicing
Company Secretary is attached to this Report.

Details of Compliances with the Non-
mandatory Requirements of Regulation
27 of the Listing Regulations:

In addition to the mandatory requirements, the
Company has also adopted the following non-
mandatory requirements under Regulation
27(1) of the Listing Regulations:

— The Company sends out quarterly and periodic
investor updates by way of Press Releases and
Investor Presentations to the shareholders
comprising key financial, business and
operations update. Thisis sentin electronic
mode and hosted on the company's website.
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— Internal auditors of the Company make quarterly
presentations to the audit committee ontheirreports.

— The Company hasa policy for determining
‘material subsidiaries’ which is disclosed onits
website i.e. www.tanla.com/investors.html

— ESG council to monitor the ESG initiatives of the
Company

11. Means of Communication

Website and Pressreleases

The Company's website https://www.tanla.com/
investors.html contains a separate section for Investors
wherein the updated information pertaining to quarterly,
halfyearly and annual financial results, official press
releases, shareholding pattern, corporate governance
reports are available in a user-friendly and downloadable
form. Official media releases are sent to BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The
Company also makes timely disclosures of necessary
information to BSE limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited in terms of SEBI(LODR) Regulations,
2015 and otherrules and regulationsissued by SEBI.
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Financial Results

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial

results of the Company are submitted to the BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India

Limited immediately after approval of the Board of
Directors of the Company. The financial results of

the Company are also published in Financial Express

or Business Standard or Economic Times, English

daily newspapers at national level and Namasthe
Telangana or Nava Telangana or Andhra Jyothi or Sakshi,
Vernaculari.e. Telugu newspapers atregional level.

Channels of communication with the investors

All periodical compliance filings like shareholding
pattern, corporate governance report, media releases
are filed electronically on NEAPS for NSE and on BSE
Listing Centre for BSE Limited and are also placed

on the website of the Company www.tanla.com.

Annual Report

Annual Report containinginter-alia Standalone
Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Directors’' Report, Auditors’ Report, and
Corporate Governance Report etc. is circulated

to the members entitled thereto and softcopy

of the same is made available on the Company'’s
website https://www.tanla.com/investors.html.

91



12. General Shareholder’s Information

Date, Time & Venue of AGM

August 26,2022 at 03:00 PM.

Pursuant to the General Circular numbers 21/2021, dated December 14, 2021
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Circulars issued by SEBI, the 26th
AGM of the Company will be held through video-conferencing and other audio
visual means, the detailed instructions for participation and voting at the meeting
isavailable in the notice of the 26th AGM.

Financial Calendar

April O1to March 31

Dividend Payment Date

The Board of Directors recommended final dividend of Rs 2/- per equity share of
Rs 1/-eachforthe FY 2021-22.

Date of Book Closure

August 20, 2022 to August 26,2022

Listing of Shares

Company's shares are listed at -
— TheBombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

— National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)

Annual Listing fees for the FY 2022-23 have been paid to all the above Stock
Exchanges.

Stock Code

BSE Ltd. 532790
NSE TANLA
ISIN for (shares) of NSDL & CDSL INE483C01032

Registrar and Transfer Agents

M/s Kfin Technologies Private Limited

(Unit: Tanla Solutions Limited)

Selenium Tower-B, Plot No. 31&32, Financial District, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana State, India. Phone: +91040
67161585/2222

Fax:+9104023001153

Registered Office / Address for
Correspondence

Tanla Platforms Limited (formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited) Tanla
Technology Centre, Hi-tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad -500 081.
Phone: +9140-40099999; Fax: +9140-23122999
Website:www.tanla.com Email ID:investorhelp@tanla.com
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Market Price Data

The closing market price of the equity shares as on March 31,2022, being the last trading
day the FY 2021-22 on NSE was 1,525 .95/-and on BSE was Rs 1,52715/-

The monthly movement of the equity share price during the year 2021-22 on BSE and NSE are summarized herein below:

BSE Limited (BSE) NSE Limited (NSE)
2021-22 Share Price (inX) Share Price (inX)

Month HighPrice | Low Price HighPrice | Low Price
April 986.65 82155 985.55 821.60
May 968.00 8b2.55 968.80 85290
June 92700 735.00 92770 735.00
July 1,02490 780.00 1,025.50 780.00

August 999.75 827.70 1,000.90 824.05

September 925.00 790.00 930.00 788.50
October 1,33495 854.00 1,334.00 853.40
November 1,638.95 1149.20 1,640.00 1150.00
December 2,02790 1,428.10 2,02395 1,428.00

January 2,094.40 1,624.00 2,096.75 1,621.20
February 1,838.40 1,409.00 1,840.00 1,406.20
March 1,625.70 1,30795 1,625.00 1,301.05
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Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty

Performance of the scrip of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex s as follows:

Share price vs Sensex
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Performance of the scrip of the Company in
comparison to NSE S&P CNXNIFTY is as follows:
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Distribution of shareholdings as on March 31, 2022

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Category Cases % of Cases Amount % Amount
upto1-5000 132471 99.27 13590583.00 10.01
5001-10000 407 0.30 2925334.00 216
10001-20000 265 0.20 3782022.00 279
20001-30000 94 0.07 2308121.00 1.70
30001-40000 33 0.02 1158430.00 0.85
40001-50000 28 0.02 1229734.00 091
50001-100000 51 0.04 3718940.00 274
100001 &Above 98 0.07 107032359.00 78.85
Total 133447 100.00 135745523.00 100.00
Share holding pattern as on March 31, 2022
Description Cases Shares % Equity
Alternative Investment Fund 6 19,79,019 146
Banks 2 3,787 0.00
Clearing Members 172 2,02,033 015
Directors 8 43,59,947 3.21
Directors and their Relatives 3 16,175 0.01
Employees 4 32,48,149 2.39
Foreign Nationals 1 85,886 0.06
Foreign Portfolio- Corp 151 1,82,69,244 13.46
HUF 1,862 19,21900 1.42
IEPF 1 32998 0.02
Bodies Corporates 534 17,74,758 1.31
Mutual Funds 7 1,05,681 0.08
NBFC 3 11,000 0.01
Non-Resident Indians 1,718 18,54,179 1.37
NRINon-Repatriation 880 6,34,615 0.47
Promoters Bodies Corporate 6 72,65,684 5.35
Promoter Director Relative 2 210,88,127 15.54
Promoter Group 4 10,07,210 0.74
Company Promoters 3 2.92,39,225 2154
Promoter Trust 1 770,036 0.57
Resident Individuals 1,28,037 39842112 29.35
QIB 2 20,30,697 1.50
Trusts 3 3,061 0.00
Total 1,33,447 13,567,45,523 100.00



Dematerialisation

9991% of the Company'’s paid-up equity share capital
hasbeen dematerialized as on March 31, 2022.
Shares of the Company are traded compulsorily in
dematerialised form and are available for trading
through both the depositoriesi.e. CDSLand NSDL.

Control Report as on March 31,2022

No. of No. of

Description Holders | Shares

Physical 32 121313 0.09

NSDL 43751 117526276 86.58

CDSL 89664 18095934 13.33

Total 133447 135745523  100.00
Share Transfer System

Interms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations,
asamended from time to time, securities can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect
from April1, 2019, exceptin case of request received
for transmission or transposition of securities. Further,
SEBIhas fixed March 31, 2021as the cut-off date
forre-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares
that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only
indemat mode. Members holding shares in physical
formare requested to consider converting their
holdings to dematerialized form. Transfers of equity
sharesin electronic form are effected through the
depositories with no involvement of the Company.

However, the shareholders are not barred from
the holding the sharesin physical form.

Outstanding GDR's / ADR's / Warrant or
any convertible instruments, conversion

date and likely impact on Equity.

Ason March 31,2022, there were no outstanding
warrants to be convertible into equity shares.

The Company has notissued any GDRs/ADRs
orany other convertible instruments.
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Commaodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange
Risk and hedging activities

The Company does not deal in commodities
and hence not exposed to any commodity
price risk. The Foreign Exchange exposure of
the Companyis minimal compared to the total
domestic operations of the Company, further
the operations of the Company in International
Geographies act as natural exchange hedge.

Plant Location

Inview of the nature of the Company's
businessviz. aviz Information Technology
and Communication, the Company operates
from various offices in India and abroad.

Details of Consolidated Fees paid
to the Statutory Auditors

The details of the total fees for all the services
paid by the Company and its Subsidiarieson a
consolidated basis to the statutory auditors and all
the entitiesin the network firm/network entity of
which the statutory auditor is apart, are as follows:

. Amount
Particulars (inRs)
Services as Statutory Auditors 53,50,000
Tax Audit -
Other matters 29,50,000
Re-imbursement of out-of-pocket 3,48940
expenses

Transfer of unclaimed / unpaid dividend to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

The Company did not declare dividends during
FY 2014-15, hence no unpaid/unclaimed dividend
for FY 2014-15 would be transferred to the IEPF.

Details of unpaid/unclaimed dividend upto FY

2021-22 are published on the website of the
Company www.tanla.com/investors.html
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Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and Part F of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, details of
equity sharesin the suspense account are as follows:

Number of
Shareholders

Particulars

Number of equity shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding sharesin the 15 870
suspense account lyingas on April1, 2022

Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares - -
from suspense account during the year

Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense - -
account during the year

Shareholders whose shares are transferred to the demat account of - -
the IEPF Authority as per Section 124 of the Act

Aggregate number of shareholders and theoutstanding sharesin the 15 870
suspense account lying as on March 31,2022

Complaints Pertaining to Sexual Harassment

The details pertaining to the Complaints on sexual harassment has mentioned in the Board Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Place:Hyderabad Chairman & CEO
Date: July 25,2022 DIN : 00003382
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Annexure-5
Particulars of Employees

[As per Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

A. Statement of Particulars as per Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

1. Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the Employees (MRE) of the Company for the
financial year

% Increase of
remuneration in
Designation Ratio of the MRE fiscal 2022 as
compared to fiscal
2021

Name of the

Directors

Executive Directors

1 D Uday Kumar Chairman and 1:25 0%
Reddy 00003382 CEO
2 Deepak Executive :
1:28 %
Satyaprakash 01765263 Director & CBO 20%
oya

Key Managerial Person (KMP)

3 Aravind B CFO 1:21 0%
Viswanathan
Seshanuradha . o
4 Chava CS 1.6 54%

2. The medianremuneration of employees of the Company during FY 2021-22 was Rs 100000/- p.a.

3.Percentageincrease in the median remuneration of the employeesin the financial year -22%

4. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31,2022 is 336.

5.Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances forincrease in the managerial remuneration:

The average annual increase in salaries of employees was around 13.06% Increase in the managerial remuneration for the
yearwas12.75%.
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The Company affirms that remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is as per the remuneration policy of
the Company.
B. List of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration drawn as set out in Rule 5 (2) of the Companies

Whether
Remun- ::T?plo-
i *
eratlFJn Nature of Qualification | Date of Thelast yeeisa
recelved | o mployment, | and Comme- employ- | o lative
Name of the . . (R)p.a. ploy ‘ . ment held
Designation whether experience | ncement ofany
Employee Remunera- before .
. contractual of the of employ- s director
tion* ) joining the
. or otherwise | employee ment or
received Company
®)p.a manager
e of the
company
Chief
Uday Kumar ) MBA & 16-Mar-
1 Reddy Dasari Exeputwe 2,71,01,254 | Permanent 236 Years | 2000 55 - No
Officer
. chief PGSEM &
2 Harish Arora | Technology | 1,7817402 | Permanent 29-Oct-20 | 51 NetApp No
; 2742 Years
Officer
) Chief
3 Aravmd Financial 193,565,509 | Permanent PEDM & 07-Apr-21 | 43 Wipro No
Viswanathan ) 1998 Years
Officer
Sriram Chief
4 Srinvasa  Operations 11213778 | Permanent | on52844 00 octag |51 | [ATEe 1y,
- ) ) Years services
Vinjamuri Officer
. Intellect
5 beborah Director- 1 935629 permanent | MCAE219 05 aorot 51 Design | No
Premalata Engineering Years
Arena
Vice
President- Tata
6 ﬁnuraargwal Partner 58,86,750 | Permanent :\(/leZ'éS&BBs 01-Jun-21 | 37 Communi | No
99 ships & cation
Alliances
Vice Virtu
7 Venkata Papi President- | 63,110,200 | Permanent MCA 826 08-Nov- 51 Mgb|le No
ReddyKonda Engineerin Years 06 Private
g 9 Limited
g  pavenKumar Principal g5 g0 367 permanent | Mon&2281 1 0g jun-21 43 IMIMobile | No
Kuchibhatla | Engineer Years
Praveen Senior XiUS-BCGI
9 Kumar Director - 53,7447 Permanent :\(/IeEaifs&1é.72 16-Jul-08 | 42 Private No
ReddyNarra | Products Limited
10 AunRau DT Tes 6016 permanent | PCE1820 ug janor 54 cisco No
Engineering Years

*Remuneration paid excludes perquisite value of shares allotted under ESPS/ESOP.

(Remuneration includes salary and allowances, commission where applicable, Company's contribution to Provident Fund,
Superannuation Fund and Group Gratuity Scheme, reimbursement of medical expenses at actuals, and monetary value of
perquisites calculated inaccordance with the Income Tax Act/Rules.)

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

99




Statement under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule 2014

Statement under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule 2014:

(Employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs 850 Lakhs per month or
21,02,00,000 perannum or more)

Name, Age Designation Date of commencement Remuneration Relative of
of employment Last )
and and nature of commencement ) (ININR) per Director
e Experience Employment | .
Qualification employment ofemployment | . annum if any
inyears

Uday Kumar Chief Executive | 16-Mar-2000 22.36Years 2,71,01,254 - No
Reddy Dasari, | Officer
55Years, MBA
Aravind Chief Financial | O7-Apr-21 1998 Years 193,55,509 Wipro No
Viswanathan, Officer
43 Years,
PGDM
Sriram Chief 22-Oct-18 28.44 Years 11213,778 Tata No
Srinivasa Operations Teleservices
Vinjamuri, 51 Officer
Years, MBA
Harish Arora, 51 | Chief 29-0Oct-20 2742 Years 17817402 Net App No
Years, PGSEM | Technology

Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & CEO

Place: Hyderabad
DIN : 00003382

Date: July 25,2022
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Annexure-6

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to the provisions of section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

(A) Conservation of Energy
While continuing to believe in philosophy of Energy saved is Energy produced, adequate measures commensurate with
the business operations have been taken to reduce and conserve the energy consumption by utilising energy efficient
equipmentwherever required.

(B) Technology absorption
We continue to focus and invest in Research & Development of New Products and Methodologies for enhancing the
quality of products and services.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

a. Imports (valued on the cost, insurance and freight basis)
(Amountin )

Particulars For the Year 2021-22 For the Year 2020-21

Import of capital goods Nil Nil

b. Activity in Foreign Currency:
(Amountin <)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

Gross earnings 23,82,14,778 58,32,63,894
Cash outflow 17,64,60,229 53,62,84,146
Net earnings in foreign exchange 6,17,54,549 4,69,79,748

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Redd
Place: Hyderabad Chairm\;nicéo v
Date: July 25,2022 DIN : 00003382
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Annexure - 7 (Form No. MR 3)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The The Members

Tanla Platforms Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of Tanla Platforms Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’) to conduct
the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct
Investment;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018

(vi) The Company has identified that no Industry specific laws were applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:
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Compliance Requirement (Regulations /

Observations/ Remarks of the

circulars/ guidelines includin Deviations .
o /9 9 Practicing Company Secretary
specific clause)
NIL NIL NIL
We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the period under review, resolutions were carried through majority.

Based on the information, documents provided and the representations made by the Company, its officers during our audit
process in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws, labour laws, filing of periodical returns, maintenance of
financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed by us since the same have been subject to review by
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and other professionals.

We further report that following are major events during the audit period:

(i) Buyback of Shares:

The Buyback of Shares of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on July 22, 2021. The
Buyback Opening Date was July 29, 2021 and the Buyback Closing Date was September 01, 2021. The total number of
Equity Shares bought back pursuant to the Buyback were 7,05,677 Equity Shares at a price of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One
Only) per Equity Share.

(i) Restricted Stock Unit Plan 2021:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board of the Company (“Board”) at their respective
meetings held May 17, 2021 and May 19, 2021 had approved ‘Tanla Platforms Limited- Restricted Stock Unit Plan 2021
("RSU 2021" / "Plan”) wherein total number of 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakhs) RSU’s to be granted.

The members of the Company had approved the Plan by passing special resolution by way of Postal Ballot on June 19,
2021.

(iii) Changesin share capital :
¢ Under ESOP 2015 Scheme, 4,14,750 equity shares Re 1/- each were allotted to the respective allottees in tranches.
¢ The Company has bought back 7,05,677 shares of Re 1/- each.

(iv) Changesin Director/KMP:

¢ Mr. G K Srinivas stepped down from the position of Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company with effect from closure of the business hours on May 31, 2021.

¢ Mr. Aravind Viswanathan was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial Personnel with effect from
June 01, 2021.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 25, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - AO35709D000681057

NOTE:: This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure’ and forms an integral part of
thisreport.
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Annexure

To,

The The Members

Tanla Platforms Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Our Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, secretarial
standards issued by ICSl is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, authorized representatives during
the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly compliance report by the respective departmental heads/
Company Secretary/ Managing Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems
and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable general laws like labour
laws & Environment laws and Data protection policy.

8. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws have not
been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors and other
designated professionals.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 25, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.:1258/2021
UDIN - A035709D000681057
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Annexure - 8 (Form No. MR 3)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The The Members

Karix Mobile Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Corporation Private Limited)

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of Karix Mobile Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’) to
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company'’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized rep-
resentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct
Investment;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Com-
pany Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, there were no events/actions in pursuance of:
(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Audit period.

We report that, the Company has identified that no Industry specific laws were applicable to the Company.
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We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the period under review, resolutions were carried through majority.

Based on the information, documents provided and the representations made by the Company, its officers during our audit
process in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws, labour laws, filing of periodical returns, maintenance of
financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed by us since the same have been subject to review by
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and other professionals.

We further report that there were no changes in share capital, Mergers & Amalgamations or appointment/ resignation of
Directors during the audit period.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 29, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - A0O35709D000706830

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure’ and forms an integral part of this
report.
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Annexure

To,

The The Members

Karix Mobile Private Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Corporation Private Limited)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, secretarial
standards issued by ICSl is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, authorized representatives during
the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly compliance report by the respective departmental heads/
Company Secretary/ Managing Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems
and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable general laws like labour
laws & Environment laws and Data protection policy.

8. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws have not
been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors and other
designated professionals.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 29, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - A035709D000706830
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Annexure-9
Secretarial Compliance Certificate under Regulation 24(A)

To,

The Board of Directors

Tanla Platforms Limited (formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)
Tanla Technology Center

Madhapur, Hyderabad -500081

We, Madhu Lakhlan & Company, Practising Company Secretary, have examined:

a. Allthe documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Tanla Platforms Limited
(“the listed entity”),

b. The filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
c. Website of the listed entity,

d. Any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, for the year ended
31st March, 2022 ("Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued
thereunder; and

b. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:

a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018- NA for the
Review Period;

c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

f. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - NA for the Review
Period;

g. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares)
Regulations, 2013 - NA for the Review Period;

h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015; and circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder; and based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during the Review Period:

a. The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there
under.

b. The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above regulations and circulars /guidelines
issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records.

c. There were no actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or
by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars)
under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from my ex-
amination of those records.

d. Thereporting of actions by the listed entity to comply with the observations made in previous reports does not arise
during the Review period.

Hyderabad Sd/-

May 24, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

UDIN - A0O35709D000375488
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Annexure -10
Annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Our Corporate Governance philosophy

Giving back to Societyis one of the core values of
Tanla, wherein we promise to give back 1% of our
People'stime and 1% of Products to the society, with an
objective toimprove the communities in which we live.

Focus areas

Thethree pillars of our CSR activities are outlined as
'EEE’- Education, Employment &Environment. The
group companies have carried out activities under
of these sectors though Tanla Platforms Ltd., is not
under statutory obligation to spend 2% under CSR.

CSR activities

The activities under the Education sector fall under
PILLARS —acronym for Project for Improvement of
Learning Levels through Academic supportin Rural
Schools. Under Employment, skill development and
placement has beendonein 2 categories - Data
Entry Operator and Business Development/Sales
executive. Tree plantation partnerships has been
signed between the government and Tanla Platforms
Limited which will restore the CO2 balance inthe
atmosphere and fight global warming &climate change.

2.Composition of CSR Committee

No. of meetings of

. _ . Nature of No. of meetings of CSR Committee
Name of Director Designation Directorship CSR Committee attended during
held during the year theyear
RahulKhanna Chairman Independent Director 2 2
Rohit Bhasin Member Independent Director 2 2
D Uday Kumar Reddy Member Chairman &CEO 2 2
AG Ravindranath Reddy Member Non-Executive Director 2 2

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee,
CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company:

The composition of the CSR committee is available on
our website https://www.tanla.com/investors.html

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attachthereport): Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set offin
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Amount available
for set-off from
preceding
financial years

Amount required
to be set-off for the
financial year, if
any (inX)

Financial
Year

2020-21 R 6.36l1akhs N/A
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6. Average net profit of the company
as per section 135(5): (290) lakh

7. Total CSR obligation of the company:

— Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per section 135(5): %(5.8) lakh

— Surplusarising out of the CSR projects
or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years. Nil

— Amountrequiredto be set off for
the financial year, if any: Nil

— Total CSR obligation for the financial
year (7a+7b-7c).: NA
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8 (a). CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Total Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR Account Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule

Total Amount Spent as per section 135(6) VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)

for the Financial Year

(inR) Amount | Date of transfer Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer

Not applicable

8 (b). Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year

Location of the
project.

Mode of
Implementation
-Through
Implementing
Agency

Name Itemfrom Local State| District Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Name | CSR

ofthe  thelist of area duration allocated spentin transferredto Implemen- Registration

Project activitiesin (Yes/No) forthe the current UnspentCSR  tation- Direct Number
Schedule project financial Account for (Yes/No)

Viltothe (inR) Year (inR) theprojectas
Act per Section
135(6) (inX)

Notapplicable

8 (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year

Location of the
project.

Name Itemfromthe Local State |District Amount spentfor Mode of Amount spent

ofthe listofactivities area the project (inX) Implementation inthe current
Project inSchedule (Yes/No) -Direct (Yes/No) financial
Viltothe Act Year (inR)

Not applicable

Mode of Implementation
- Through Implementing
Agency

Name CSR
Registration
Number

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NA

(9) Excess amount for set off, if any: R 6.36 lakh
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Particulars X Lakhs

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) (5.8)

Totalamount spent for the Financial Year -

Excessamount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NA
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial NA
years, ifany

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years|(iii)-(iv)] NA

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule Vil as per section 135(6), if any

Preceding Amount Amountspent Name of Amount (inX) Date of transfer Amount
financialyear  transferred inthe reporting the Fund remaining to

to Unspent Financial be spentin
CSRAccount  Year(in%) succeeding
under section financial
135 (6) (in ) years. (inX)

Notapplicable

9. (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s)

Project ID Name of the Financial Year Project Totalamount Amount Cumulative  Status of
Project inwhichthe duration allocatedfor spentonthe amountspent the project-
project was the project projectinthe attheend Completed

commenced (inR) reporting ofreporting /Ongoing.
Financial Financial
Year (inX) Year. (inX)

Notapplicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital
asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent

in the financial year (asset-wise details)

— Provide details of the capital asset(s) created
oracquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset). Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has
failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

— Date of creation oracquisition of the
capital asset(s). Not Applicable

— Amount of CSR spent for creation or
acquisition of capital asset. Not Applicable

— Details of the entity or public authority or
beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
isregistered, theiraddress etc.: Not Applicable
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Annexure-T1
Business Responsibility Report

The Business Responsibility Report (BRR) is aligned with National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, Environmental and
Economic Responsibilities of Business, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), and is in accordance with clause
(f) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

At Tanla, we aim to become the “"Global Number One” - Partner of Choice for Enterprises to communicate with Customers -
whilst remaining steadfast to our ethics and integrity, and our commitments to Triple Bottom Line: People, Planet, and Profit.
Tanla believesin conducting its business activities in a responsible and sustainable manner.

In our journey of being a responsible company, we believe in conducting our business with Integrity and high information
security while balancing —a green planet, empowered community and positive workplace.

Our Company'’s Business Performance and Impacts are disclosed based on the 9 Principles as mentioned in the NVGs.

Section A: General disclosures about the company

— Corporate Identity Number (CIN):
L72200TG1995PLC0O21262

— Name of the Listed Entity: Tanla Platforms Limited
— Yearofincorporation: 28/07/1995

— Registered office address: Tanla Technology
Centre, Hitech City Road, Madhapur,
Hyderabad Telangana - 500081

— Corporate address: Tanla Technology Centre, Hitech
City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad Telangana-500081

— E-mail:info@tanla.com
— Telephone: +91-40-40099999
— Website: www.tanla.com

— Financial year for which reporting
isbeing done: 2021-22

— Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where
sharesare listed: BSE & NSE

— Paid-up Capital: INR13,57,45,523/-

— Sector(s) thatthe Companyisengagedin
(industrial activity code wise) Information
and Communication-J8

— Number of locations where plants and/or
operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Number of | Number of

Location X Total
plants offices
National NA 5 5
International NA 2 2
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Section B: Financial details of the company

— Paid up Capital (INR):INR13,57,45,523/-

— Total Turnover (INR): INR 3,20,597.33 Lakhs

— Total profit after taxes (INR): INR 53,92791 Lakhs

— Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%) and List
of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has
beenincurred: Refer Annexure - CSR Report)

Section C: Other details

— Doesthe Company have any Subsidiary Company/
Companies?(Please refer to Annexure -2 -
Which forms part of the Director's Report)

— Dothe Subsidiary Company/Companies
participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent
company? If yes, thenindicate the number
of such subsidiary company(s) - 3

— Doanyother entity/entities (e.g. suppliers,
distributors etc.) that the Company does
business with, participate in the BR initiatives
of the Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than
30%, 30-60%, More than 60%] - 30-60%
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Principle 1

Do you have a policy for Principle 1

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Tanla has a policy on Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.
Our Code of Conduct (COC) is applicable to our customers,
suppliers, partners, competitors, employees and other
stakeholders.

Yes

NA

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/media/images/dividend/Tanla_Code_
of_Conduct.pdf

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant Yes

internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implementthe | Yes

policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal Yes

mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address

stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of | Yes

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
Principle 2

Do you have a policy for Principle 2

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implement the
policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

The policy for sustainability is embedded in our ESG

strategy. We also have a well-defined roadmap to achieve our
ESG aspirations

Yes

International - (UN SDG)

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/esg/index.html
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Principle 3

Do you have a policy for Principle 3

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?
Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Tanla has policy on employee health and safety and other HR
policies.

Yes

NA

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/esg/assets/social/fair&equitable-work-
place/policy_on_employee_health&safety.pdf

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant Yes

internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implementthe | Yes

policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal Yes

mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address

stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of | Yes

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
Principle 4

Do you have a policy for Principle 4

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implement the
policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders' grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Tanla has the following policies like Supplier Code of
Conduct (SCoC), Dividend Distribution Policy, Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy

Yes

NA

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/esg/assets/social/valuechain/SCOC.
pdf; https://www.tanla.com/media/images/Policies/Dividend-
DistributionPolicy.pdf; https://www.tanla.com/media/images/
Policies/CSR_Policy.pdf

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Principle 5

Do you have a policy for Principle 5

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?
Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Tanla has a policy on Human Rights
Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/esg/assets/social/valuechain/Human-
RightsStatement.pdf

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant Yes

internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implement the | Yes

policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal Yes

mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address

stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of | Yes

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
Principle 6

Do you have a policy for Principle 6
Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implement the
policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Tanla's ESG strategy embeds inits principles of environmental
sustainability and commitment to carbon neutrality
Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/esg/assets/Tanla_ESG_Journey.pdf
Yes

Yes

NA

Yes
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Principle 7

Do you have a policy for Principle 7

Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Tanla doesn't currently engage in any form of Advocacy.
NA

Does the policy conform to any national / international NA

standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board? NA

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/ | NA

Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? NA

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant NA

internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implementthe | NA

policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal NA

mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address

stakeholders' grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of | NA

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
Principle 8

Do you have a policy for Principle 8
Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international
standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implement the
policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Tanla's CSR policy covers the Commitment and policy on
Corporate Social Responsibility
Yes

No

Yes
Yes

https://www.tanla.com/media/images/Policies/CSR_Policy.pdf
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Principle 9

Do you have a policy for Principle 9 Tanla's Code of Conduct (CoC) covers this.
Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the Yes

relevant stakeholders?

Does the policy conform to any national / international No

standards?

Has the policy being approved by the Board? Yes

Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/ | Yes
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? https://www.tanla.com/media/images/dividend/Tanla_Code_
of_Conduct.pdf
Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant Yes

internal and external stakeholders?

Does the company have in-house structure to implementthe | Yes
policy/ policies.

Does the Company have a grievance redressal Yes
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?

Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of | Yes
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
Governancerelated to BR

— Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR
performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1year — Annually

— Doesthe Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it
is published? -www.tanla.com

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22 17



Section E: Principle wise performance

Principle 1: Business Governance that ensures integrity

Ethics and Accountability are the cornerstones of
sustainable business practices. The Whistleblower
policy enables and the Audit Committee ensures that
we build a strong foundation of fair, transparent and
ethical governance. Our Code of Conduct lays down
principles against discrimination, bribes, kickbacks,
andimproper payments. At the time of induction,
allemployees are made aware of and have to sign

off the Code of Conduct to acknowledge that they
haveread, understood and are committed to it.

Policies that ensure integrity include Code of Ethics,
General Fraud Policy. We have also instituted in
2021an Employee Redressal Policy and putin

place a confidential helpline called SpeakUp where
the employees canreportall violations of above
policies. SpeakUp also ensures a no-retaliation
assurance to employees who approach SpeakUp.

Tanla's policy relating to ethics, bribery
and corruptionis applicable to the Group,
Suppliers, Contractors and others.

No stakeholder complaints were received
inthe currentand past financial year.

Principle 2: Are our goods and services sustainable and
safe?

Tanla has a commitment towards ESG adherence and
in May 2021 we have declared to go carbon neutral
by 2025. Our energy consumption and emissions

are being monitored as we pursue our plansto
reduce emissions. We have studied our carbon
footprint for the years 19-20, 20-21&21-22 basis
which our mitigation strategy is being finalized.

We are mindful of our energy consumption and
balance our physicaland cloud presencein the

best possible manner -we are largely operating out
of Green Data Centers. To effectively service our
customers, we have both physical servers and Cloud
presence. Thisisan areawhere, while procuring new
hardware, we consciously focus on energy efficient
upgradation. Thisis accomplished by choosing
partnerships with trusted names acknowledged

for sustainability policies and practices; over
equipment/products from companies who may offer
lower purchase costs but are less sustainable.
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We are certified with ISO/IEC 27001:2013
Information Security Management System.

Safety of transactions as well as data security and
data privacy is of paramountimportance. TPL's Wisely
platform which uses Blockchain technology provides
endto end encryption securing both the data as well
as data privacy of the end users. We support the audit
trail required by regulators which provides resolution
to complaints raised by customers and end users

The companyisleveragingits existing services/
products to provide basic life servicesin the areas of
health, while also simplifying access to and information
on financialand commercial transactions. We have
partnered with NIC to disseminate information.

Principle 3: How dowe respect and promote the well-
pbeing of all our employees and those in our value chain

— Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees:632

— Please indicate the Total number of employees
hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis:NA

— Pleaseindicate the Number of
permanentwomen employees:146

— Pleaseindicate the Number of permanent
employees with disabilities:Nil

— Pleaseindicate the Number of complaintsrelating
to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour,
sexual harassmentin the last financial yearand
pending, as onthe end of the financial year:Nil

We have a well defined Employee Health & Safety Policy
—-EHS Policy. The implementation of the EHS policy is
ensured through an activity undertaken by the senior
employees of the organization every quarter through an
ESG Walk. This ESG Walk makes the senior executives
physically walk through every floor of the buildings,

and commenting on satisfaction/improvement
suggestions on matters of health &safety. It could
range from a damp area that could lead to breeding pf
mosquitoes to an access to an unprotected higher floor.

That the well-being of our employees and their
familiesis of paramountimportance to us as has been
reiterated by the pandemic support offered to our
employees and their families which includes 2 doses
of vaccinations to employees and their families.



A special task force was formed to support the
employeeswith counselling, medical and financial
assistance. This 24x7 task force could be accessed
through WhatsApp and email. On aregular basis too,
we provided counselling sessions for well-being, we
conducted sessions which was extended physically
&virtually to allemployees. Term health and accident
insurance are extended as part of employee benefits.

Careerdevelopment and upskilling of our
employeesisimportant to us. For thiswe have
partnered with multiple learning portals for skillsets
wherein employees can enroll ona company
account to be trained and obtain certifications.

We have formulated a Supplier Code of Conduct
in 2021and implemented the same for those in
our value chain. We ensure we not only onboard
vendors and suppliers who sign our Supplier
Code of Conduct butwe also sensitize them
ontheimportance of further disseminating the
principles laid out in the SCoC down their line.

Principle 4 : How are we protecting the interests
of vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?

Digitally uninformed and unaware persons are
vulnerable to fraud and identity theft online. However,
digital communication has become a part of everyday
life and our platforms provides several safeguards
which protects the vulnerable end-users. An
unnoticeable change in header sometimes causes
the vulnerable to be misguided into entering into a
transaction due to mistakenidentity. Trublog prevents
spamand thereby fraud by doing a thorough check

of the entity before registration. Safeguards are
ensured through scrubbing and pre-registration
check of template and content of messages.

As part of our CSRinitiatives, we work with government
school studentsinrural areas toimprove their learning
levels. Most of these students are first generation
learners from marginalized communities. The education
initiative is called PILLARS - Project for Improvement

of Learning Levels through Academic Supportin

Rural Schools. We have added digital education
material and partnered with the country’s premier
e-learning platform to provide rural government

school students the best modules of learning.

We also provide employability skills to unemployed
youthinthe 18-35 age group where training
and placementis doneinvarious sectors.

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Principle 5 : How do we respect and promote Human
Rights

We have formulated a Human Rights statement and
adhere to allHuman Rights principles followed globally
and also with specific reference to Indian Laws.

We respect Human Rights across our value chain, and we
beginwith responsible action at our own operations. Our
commitment to Human Rightsis reinforced through our
Code of Conduct and we follow the law of the land and
local regulations across the organization. The ICC POSH
and Audit Committees are some of the processes which
arein place to show our commitment to Human Rights.

We have conducted campaigns across our
employees on building awareness regarding
Human Rights, our commitment to the principles
and the importance of adhering to the same.

Principle 6 : Do we respect and make efforts to protect
the environment?

Our commitment to Environment is shown in our
aspiration to becoming carbon neutral by 2025.
To achieve the same, we have measured our
emissions numbers and putin place a 3 pronged
strategy of Reduce use and thus curtail emissions,
Review source and switch to green energy
source, Restore the carbon di oxide balance in

the atmosphere through trees plantation.

We have successfully implemented elimination of
single use plasticinall our offices wef September
2021and our employees have carried forward
these principles beyond the office locations.

Being a cloud communications company, our
servicesresultinreducing the use of several physical
resources ranging from paper to fuel. Examples
being -reducing unnecessary travel to enquire and
register fora covid shot or trip to banks to ensure
secure financial transactions or unnecessary printout
of statements of balance in bank accounts.

To furtherreduce the hardware requirements, we have
been gradually increasing our presencein cloud.
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We believe inthe triple bottom line of Planet
People and Profits which has led to the choice
of environment related activities in our constant
endeavor to protect the environment and to
further this commitment we have been carrying
out tree plantation activity foralmost a decade.

Principle 7 : Advocacy must be responsible, transparent
and for public good

We understand the influence we wield, due to our
presenceinthe area of cloud communications and
we wear our responsibility ina committed manner. We
engage with government agenciesin order to help
them understand the importance of digital education
especiallyinruralareas where itis not possible to
engage best practitioners for conventional teaching
methodologies. We include in all our initiatives several
stakeholders to maintain transparency and collective
responsibility — giving a voice to even the smallest of
stakeholders —while we work towards public good.

Principle 8 : Businesses should supportinclusive growth
&equitable development

Under our CSR Policy, the initiatives that are taken up fall
broadly under the categories of Environment, Education
and Employement. The initiatives recommended

by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board
areimplemented by the CSR Team with resource
persons-asneededin eachinitiative. Working with
government high school students to ensure their
grade specific competenciesis one of the ways of
ensuring inclusive growth and an equitable society.
The student’s progressis also measured through
baseline and end-line assessments of theirlearning
levels. We have broughtin digital classrooms to the
government high school students and content from
the country’s premier e-leaning facilitator. We also
support the high performers by providing personalised
study equipment like individual tabs loaded with

their current syllabus to help them perform better in
theirexams. The Class X students get extra support
through after school special classes focussed onthe
upcoming board exams while providing nutritious
breakfast and tiffins throughout these extra hours of
learning. This education initiative is called PILLARS

As part of the project, we also sensitize the stakeholders
in the education ecosystem, the parents, teachers,
community, government machinery on the need to build
required support systemsinrural areas where education
and schooling of the children often takes a back seat

due to poverty. To the community our commitmentis

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

ourdirect presence as aresponsible business, giving
directaccess and assurance of being available to
reach out to with their problems and suggestions.

Skill Training for employability is also a project that
was undertaken with successful outcomes. 83 of
the 108 students who were trained were placed

in Data Entry and Business Development jobs
with an average salary of Rs12,000/month.

Principle 9 : Do we engage with and provide value for our
customersinaresponsible manner

Through Wisely, by offering end to end encryption
of content which protects data privacy and identity
security. This prevents data leakage and thereby the
profiling of customers by unauthorized persons which
resultsin fraud.

We engage with a wide range of partners to provide our
end user and the country with sustainable options in a
responsible manner. The communication part of the
COWIN app is powered by our technology because of
which we have provided innovative technology solutions
for basic life services - health. We have a regular audit
of our processes and also work with auditors of our BFSI
partners to enable them to conduct an audit with their
teams to ensure the security of our platforms.

We constantly upgrade our technology to reduce threat
exposure to our end users.

Tanla is certified with ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information
Security Management System.
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Annexure-12
Certificate of the CEO and the CFO to the Board of Directors of Tanla Platforms Limited

We hereby certify that:

1.

We have reviewed the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements for the quarter & financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

2. These statements do not contain any material untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading.
3. These statements together represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the
existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.
4. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting which have been
designed to ensure that all material information is periodically made to all those concerned.
5. We shall disclose to the Auditors as well as the Audit Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls, if any, and what they have done or propose to do to rectify these deficiencies.
6. We also have disclosed to the Auditors as well as the Audit Committee, instances of significant fraud, if any, that
involves management or employees having a significant role in the company's internal control systems.
7. We have indicated to the Auditors, the Audit Committee whether or not there were significant changes in internal
control over financial reporting and/or of accounting policies during the quarter and half year under review.
For Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)
Sd/- Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy Aravind Viswanathan
Hyderabad Chairman & CEO Chief Financial Officer
April 29, 2022 DIN : 00003382
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Annexure-13
AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Tanla Platforms Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)
Hyderabad

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. Tanla Platforms Limited (hereinafter
called as "the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as stipulated under Chapter IV of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

The Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified under Chapter IV of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

We further state that such complianceis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 25, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.PNo.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - A035709D000681222
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Annexure - 14
CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

For the financial year ended March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members of

Tanla Platforms Limited

(Formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Based on the disclosures/declarations received from Directors appointed on the Board of the Company, we hereby
certify that as on March 31, 2022, none of the Directors on the Board of Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Director of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Hyderabad Sd/-

July 25, 2022 Madhu Lakhlan & Company
Practicing Company Secretary
C.P No.- 23044
M. No.- 35709

PR No.: 1258/2021
UDIN - A035709D000681343

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22
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Annexure - 15

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board members and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. It is further
confirmed that all Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 as envisaged in the chapter IV of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tanla Platforms Limited
(formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Sd/-

. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Place:Hyderabad Chairman & CEO

Date: July 25,2022 DIN : 00003382
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Standalone Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Tanla Platforms Limited (formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Tanla Platforms Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31,2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting poli-
cies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethicsissued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Sr.No Key Audit Matters How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

1 Revenue Recognition: Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:

Refer to the disclosures related to Revenue Recognition
in Note 2.9 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

1. Performed walkthroughs and test of controls of the
revenue recognition processes and assessed the

The Company provides mobile messaging and payment design and operating effectiveness of key controls.

solutions for application to Peer (A2P) messaging ser-
vices. The messaging platform has advanced security,
reliability, analytics, service levels along with the proven
ability to process the largest volume of messages per
second.

Considering the nature of business in which Company
operates, there is an inherent risk in relation to accu-
racy and completeness of revenue recognition. As the
complexities of the nature, significant volume of data
processed and impact of different pricing models, we
have considered this as a key audit matter.
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. Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company'’s

accounting policies and assessing compliance with
the policies in terms of the applicable accounting
standards.

. We tested inter se reconciliations between relevant

reports generated from IT systems and sales register
prepared by the management for revenue
recognised.

. Performed other substantive procedures, including

analytics.
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Standalone Financial Statements

2 Assessment for impairment of investments Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:

The Company has non-current investments in unlisted 1. Obtained an understanding from the

subsidiaries amounting to Rs. 32,797.44 lakhs as at March management with respect to process and
31,2022, which is 29% of the total assets of the Com- controls followed by the Company to perform
pany. We considered the valuation of such investments impairment test related to investments.

to be significant to the audit, because of the materiality
of the investments to the standalone financial state-
ments of the Company and the sensitivity thereof to the
various unobservable valuation inputs, uncertain future
cash flows and assumptions that require considerable followed for impairment test and key
judgement. assumptions applied.

3. Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology applied and reasonableness of
the assumptions used i.e., the discount rate and

2. Assessed the Company'sinternal controls
over preparation of annual budgets and future
forecasts for the subsidiaries and the approach

The management assesses at least annually the exis-
tence of impairment indicators of each unlisted invest-
ment. The determination of recoverable amounts of the

unlisted investments relies on management’s estimates long-term growth rates used in the forecast
of future cash flows and their judgement with respect to including comparison to economic and industry
the investees’ performance. forecasts where appropriate.

Accordingly, the impairment of investments was deter- 4. Assessed the reasonableness of the future

mined to be a key audit matter in our audit of the stand- revenue and margins, the historical accuracy of
alone financial statements. The basis of impairment of the Company's estimates and its ability to
unlisted investments is presented in the accounting produce accurate long-term forecasts.

policies in Note 2.7to the financial statements. 5. Verified the arithmetical / mathematical accuracy

of the management computations.

6. Assessed and validated the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made by the
management in the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The
Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be mate-
rially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial

statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of a branch included in the standalone financial statements of the Company whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1,82197 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, and the total revenue of Rs. 2,383.26 Lakhs
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial statements. The financial statements of the branch
have been audited by the branch auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of branch, is based solely on the report of such branch auditor. Further, this branch
is located outside India whose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted inits country and which have been audited by other auditor under generally accepted auditing standards applicable
in its country. The management has converted the financial statements of this branch located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in its country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conver-
sion adjustments made by the Company’s management.

Our opinion above on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable:

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from
the branch not visited by us.

c. Thereports onthe accounts of the branch office of the Company audited under Section 143(8) of the Act by branch
auditor has been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from the
branches not visited by us.

e. Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

f. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g. Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C".

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 40 to the standalone financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any ma-
terial foreseeable losses.
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re were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
Company;

1. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been

ii. The
the

iv.
2.
3.

v. The

2. Asrequired

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person / entity, including foreign entities ('Intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary has, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person / entity, including foreign entities, that the Company has directly
orindirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on our audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances and according to the information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this
regard, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations made by the
Management under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

Company has declared dividend during the year which is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us,

the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and
the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration

Sd/-

No.105047W

Amit Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AICUUU1364

Hyderabad
April 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TANLA PLATFORMS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

o Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effec-
tiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
pear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most signif-
icance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022 and are therefore, the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the mat-
ter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commu-
nication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AICUUU1364

Hyderabad
April 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TANLA PLATFORMS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(i

(if)

(i)

(V)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Com-
pany.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and

Equipment and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there
under. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company isinvolved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from a Bank on the basis
of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements are filed with such Bank are in agreement with the books of
account.

According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the
nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

(A) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiary is as follows:

Particulars Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year

- Subsidiary 3,500.00 6,371.26
Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases

- Subsidiary 3,5600.00 11,349.07

In relation to investments, guarantees provided, securities given, according to the information and explanations given to us
and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans and
advances provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In case of loans granted, Principal and Interest are repayable on demand. During the year there was no demand for
repayment of Principal and payment of Interest.

There are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of the loan granted to Company/ Firm/ LLP/ Other
Parties.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan granted has not fallen due
during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loan repayable on demand
aggregating Rs. 11,349.07 Lakhs.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either directly or
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(vili)

(xi)

indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance
with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of
investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central Government of
India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion,
though instances of slight delays were noticed, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities and there were no outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at March 31, 2022 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company, the outstanding dues
of goods and service tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Period to which the Forum where dispute

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)

amount relates is pending
Finance Act,1992 Service tax due 193.69 June2007to
September'2010 CESTAT, Hyderabad
Finance Act,1992 Service tax due 13672 May'2008 to CESTAT, Hyderabad
March'201] :

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted in the books
of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also,
there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision
stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by way of term loans.
Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from an any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or optionally

convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company.



(xii)

(ili)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the course of audit of
the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022, accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act
are not applicable to Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without any valid
Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence,
the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3
(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios, ageing and
expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act is applicable to the
Company. However, as per section 135(5), no amount is required to be spend by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of
paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. Ac-
cordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AICUUU1364

Hyderabad
April 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TANLA PLATFORMS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Tanla Platforms Limited (Formerly Known as Tanla Solutions
Limited) on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Tanla Platforms Limited
(Formerly Known as Tanla Solutions Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively

as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of re-
cords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rea-
sonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AICUUU1364

Hyderabad
April 29,2022
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data and where otherwise stated)

Standalone Financial Statements

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
I.ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 2,384.62 2,22153
(b) Intangible assets 4 762.07 919.83
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 3279744 32,946 .44
(ii) Other financial assets 6 - 25.00
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 2.813.24 3,713.78
(e) Other non-current assets 8 1,826.50 1,498.55
Total non-current assets 40,583.87 41,325.13
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 23,414.69 20,072.30
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 19.864.57 22,246 .85
(i) Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 1 189.39 1,79316
(iv) Loans 12 11,349.07 506218
(v) Other financial assets 13 13,793.45 8,028.81
(b) Other current assets 14 2704.05 78318
Total current assets 71,315.22 57986.48
TOTAL ASSETS 1,11,899.09 99,311.61
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 1,357.46 1,360.36
(b) Other equity 16 68,682.86 65,286.61
Total equity 70,040.32 66,64697
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 17 4292 4535
(b) Provisions 18 53.47 25.85
(c) Other non-current liabilities 19 4685 30.35
Total non-current liabilities 143.24 101.55
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 20
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 462 _
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 30,896.58 24,657.04
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities 21 10,569.54 7718.29
(b) Other current liabilities 22 241.88 182.37
(c) Provisions 18 291 5.39
Total current liabilities 41,715.53 32,563.09
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,11,899.09 99,311.61
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements 1-48
As per our report of even date attached
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Tanla Platforms Limited
Firm Registration No. 105047W CIN: L72200TG1995PLC0O21262
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Amit Kumar Agarwal D. Uday Kumar Reddy Aravind Viswanathan Seshanuradha Chava
Partner Chairman & CEO Chief Financial Officer General Counsel and
Membership No. 214198 DIN: 00003382 Chief Regulatory Officer
Hyderabad Hyderabad
April 29, 2022 April 29, 2022
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income
|. Revenue from operations

II. Otherincome

Ill. Total Income (I+I1)

IV. Expenses

Cost of services

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Connectivity and related expenses

Finance cost

Other expenses

Total Expenses (IV)

V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (Ill - IV)

VI. Exceptional item: Reversal of provision for impairment
of investment in subsidiary

VII. Profit before tax (V-VI)

VIII. Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Prior period tax

Total Tax expense

IX. Profit for the year (VII-VIII)

X. Other comprehensive income (‘OCI’)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange difference in translating financial statements of
foreign operations

Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes

Xl. Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)

XIl. Earnings per equity share of par value, Rs 1/- each

1. Basic
2. Diluted

[\[o] (=}

23
24

25
26
27
28

29

30

16

44

Year Ended
March 31,2022

1,24,687.30
2,731.56

1,27,418.86

1,0293393
4,822.30
643.59
73696
15.50
2,882.58
112,034.86
15,384.00

15,384.00

2,602.39
897.62
15.75
3,515.76
11,868.24

(15.69)
292

59.56

46.79
11,915.03

8.75
8.75

Standalone Financial Statements

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

89,187.55
3,082.06

92,269.61

71,087.64
2153.38
7193
514.59
Q.72
2118.26
76,595.52
15,674.09

(3972.88)

19,646.97

179496
1,996.08

3,791.04
15,855.93

13.29
(3.35)

(183.61)

(173.67)
15,682.26

1.25
1.25

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements 1-48

As per our report of even date attached

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Tanla Platforms Limited

Firm Registration No. 105047W CIN: L72200TG1995PLC0O21262

Sd/- Sd/-

Amit Kumar Agarwal D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Partner Chairman & CEO

Membership No. 214198 DIN : 00003382

Hyderabad Hyderabad

April 29, 2022 April 29, 2022

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Aravind Viswanathan
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Seshanuradha Chava
General Counsel and
Chief Regulatory Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data and where otherwise stated)

A

B

m m

Particulars

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax

Adjusted for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest and other income

Dividend income

Employee stock compensation expense

Exchange fluctuation

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment

Provision for doubtful debts

Operating profits before working capital changes
Changes in current assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in financial and non-financial assets
Increase/(Decrease) in financial and non-financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net Cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary
Loan to subsidiary

Dividend received from subsidiary

Interest and other income received

Net Cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Shares bought back including transaction cost and buyback tax

Dividend paid

Net Cash used in financing activities

Netincrease / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
(refer note 10 and 11)

Year Ended
March 31,2021

15,384.00

643.59
(1,380.29)
(1,351.28)
66676
178.26
85.02
81.04
14,307.10

(3.423.42)
(5,100.20)
2918.61
6,244.16
14,946.25
(5,225.22)

9.721.03

(594.78)
149.00
(6,279.03)
1,351.28
1102.01

(4,271.52)

10995
(8,192.22)
(1,353.31)

(9,435.58)

(3.986.07)

24,040.02

20,053.95

Standalone Financial Statements

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

15,674.09

71193
(1,014.32)
(1595.89)
14.26
(5.15)
57.65
3499
13,877.55

4712.34
3,273.34
(470.50)

11,3131

32,705.85

(2,27017)

30,435.68

(610.00)
(4,176.14)
1595.89
1,014.32

(2,175.93)

184315
(16,607.59)
(1,357.88)
(16,122.32)
12,137.43
11,902.59

24,040.02

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements 1-48

As per our report of even date attached

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Tanla Platforms Limited

Firm Registration No. 105047W CIN: L72200TG1995PLC0O21262

Sd/- Sd/-

Amit Kumar Agarwal D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Partner Chairman & CEO

Membership No. 214198 DIN : 00003382

Hyderabad Hyderabad

April 29, 2022 April 29, 2022

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22

Aravind Viswanathan
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Seshanuradha Chava
General Counsel and
Chief Regulatory Officer
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Standalone Financial Statements

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Particulars
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of Rs 1 each issued,
subscribed and fully paid:

Opening 15 13,60,36,450 1,360.36 14,59,71,699 1,459.72
Add: Issued during the year 414750 415 6757503 6757
Less: Buyback during the year (705,677) (7.05) (1,66,92,752) (16693)
Closing 13,57,45,523 1,357.46 13,60,36,450 1,360.36
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Standalone Financial Statements

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022

(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data and where otherwise stated)

1. General Information

Tanla Platforms Limited (formerly known as Tanla Solutions Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “Tanla”) (‘the company’) is the
A2P messaging platform provider globally. The Company was incorporated on July 28th, 1995 in Hyderabad and listed on BSE
and NSE. Tanla has its headquarters and development facilities in Hyderabad, India and serves a global customer base through
its subsidiaries and a branch in Dubai. Tanla develops and delivers cutting-edge technology and products which meet the dis-
cerning needs of a diverse clientele, from enterprises to carriers across geographies.

2. Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted by the company are as under:

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Sec-
tion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “"Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Compa-
nies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy

hitherto in use. These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind
AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date March 31, 2022.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following
material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments)

i) Net defined benefit assets / (liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined benefit
obligations.

iii) Share based payment transaction

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria
set outinthe Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of

service and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months

for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses
for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at
the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year in which the estimates are re-
vised and in any future years affected. Refer Note 2.19 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgements. Information about
significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment;
- Impairment;

- Financial instruments;

- Employee benefits;

- Provisions;

- Income taxes

Tanla Annual Report 2021-22 14



Standalone Financial Statements

2.2 Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Division Il - Ind AS Schedule lll to the Act. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An assetis classified as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

Aliability is classified as current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets / liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets / liabilities respectively. All other assets / liabilities
including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss-
es, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), borrowing
cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use